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WASHINGTON. D.C. 20250 

William E. Reukau±: Esq. 
Acting Special Counsel 
Office of the Special Counsel 
1730 M Street, N.W., Suite 218 
Washington. D.C. 20036 

August 17, 2009 

Subject: Office of Special Counsel (OSC) File Nos. DI-08-2143 and DI-09-0033 
OIG File No. HY-0801-0094 

Dear Mr. Reukauf: 

This will respond to your letter to Secretary of Agriculture Thomas J. Vilsack dated April 14. 
2009, regarding the subject cases. The Inspector General of the Department of Agriculture 
(USDA) was asked to investigate these matters, and Secretary Vilsack has delegated to me the 
authority to respond. Enclosed is a copy of the Secretary's delegation of authority to me to take 
all necessary responsive actions regarding the subject case and to report the results directly to you 
pursuant to 5 U.S.c. 1213(d)(5) and (e)(I). At the request of the Office ofInspector General 
(OIG). a request was submitted by USDA's Office of the Executive Secretariat on May 28,2009, 
for an extension of time within which to complete our investigation into this matter and make our 
report to you based thereon. 

Also enclosed are copies of (I) a letter to Secretary Vilsack from Inspector General Phyllis K. 
Fong dated August 12. 2009; and (2) OIG's Report ofInvestigation dated August 10.2009. The 
letter from Ms. Fong and the OIG report articulate the allegations on which the investigation was 
initiated. explain the manner in which the investigation was conducted. and summarize the 
evidence obtained in the investigation. It is clear that the allegations made regarding actions by a 
former official of the Forest Service including (a) falsification of his official duty station; 
(b) misuse of his government issued travel credit card; and (c) failure to pay his travel credit card 
account in a timely fashion. have all been substantiated. It is also clear that the former official's 
actions in these matters violated Federal and USDA regulations and policies. 

Allegations were also made that the former official involved, as well as other Forest Service and 
USDA officials, were guilty of gross mismanagement and abuse of authority with respect to the 
matters involved. Having reviewed the enclosed materials, I have concluded that there should 
have been much closer oversight by senior Forest Service officials of the former official's 
reporting. traveL and travel card use. I have also concluded that, as USDA's internal 
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investigation into these matters, performed by the Office of Human Capital Management 
(OHCM), had already been conducted and a report thereon submitted by early October 2008, 
almost simultaneously with the end of the 2008 rating year for Senior Executive Service (SES) 
employees including the former official involved here, no SES performance award should have 
been paid to the former official as was done in this case. As part of USDA's response to the 
allegations made and our investigations into them, we will instruct Forest Service and OHCM 
officials to assure that no such awards are paid in the future to the subjects of serious ongoing 
investigations without prior careful review by the Office of the Secretary. 

As is clear from the foregoing, the former Forest Service official involved in this matter has 
retired from Federal service and is therefore not subject to any disciplinary action which might 
otherwise be appropriate. Having carefully reviewed both Ms. Fong's letter and the Report of 
Investigation, I have concluded that the allegations made have been fully addressed, that all 
necessary remedial actions have been taken and, as a result, that no further steps by USDA are 
required. 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide a response in connection with this matter. 

Sincerely, 
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Kathleen A. Merrigan! 
Deputy Secretary \ 
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TO: 

United States Department of Agriculture 

Office of the Secretary 
Washington, D.C. 20250 

Kathleen Merrigan 
Deputy Secretary 

FROM: Thomas J. Vilsack ();v 
Secretary 

SUBJECT: Office of Special Counsel (OSC) File Nos. DI-08-2143 
and DI-09-0033 

APR 2 0 20lN 

Pursuant to subsection (d), paragraph (5), of 5 U.S.C. 1213 (5 U.S.C. 1213(d)(5», added 
by section 3(a)(I3) of the Whistleblower Protection Act of 1989, you are hereby 
delegated authority to perform all functions of the Secretary of Agriculture thereunder 
respecting the subject matter. You are also delegated authority pursuant to subsection 
(e)(I) of the Act (5 U.S.C. 12 13 (e)(I»', to report the results thereof directly to the Special 
Counsel. I have delegated to the Inspector General responsibility respecting this case 
under 5 U.S.C. 1213(d)(I) - (4). I have also asked the Inspector General to forward the 
results of her inquiry both to the General Counsel whom I have asked to advise you 
regarding any remedial steps which may be necessary, and to you for inclusion in the 
report you make to the Special Counsel in connection with this matter. 

cc: 
Russ Ashworth, Acting Deputy Assistant Secretary for Administration 
J. Michael Kelly, Acting General Counsel 

An I=nt,~1 ()nrv-.rtunilv I=mnlnv .. r 



UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 

AUG 1 2 2009 

The Honorable Tom Vilsack 
Secretary 
U. S. Department of Agriculture 
1400 Independence Avenue SW. 
Washington, D.C. 20250-0001 

Dear Mr. Secretary: 

OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL 

Washington D.C. 20250 

Pursuant to the requirements of 5 U.S.C. Section 1213(d), the enclosed investigative report is in 
response to the Office of Special Counsel (OSC) referrals OSC-DI-08-2143 and DI-09-0033 
(OIG Complaint Number PS-0801-0305). The referrals are whistleblower disclosures alleging 
that an employee at the Department of Agriculture (USDA), Forest Service (FS), violated 
Federal regulations and abused his position by falsirying his official duty station, misused his 
Government issued travel credit card, and failed to pay his travel credit card account in a timely 
fashion. It was also alleged that the employee and other FS and USDA officials were involved in 
gross mismanagement and abuse of authority concerning this matter. 

Office ofInspector General (OIG), Investigations officials reviewed the allegations presented by 
the whistleblowers. The ora review determined that the allegations involving the falsification 
of the duty station, misuse of the Government issued travel card, and failure to pay the credit 
card in a timely manner were substantiated. In addition, the employee, Mr. Jesse L. King, former 
Associate Deputy <;:hief, Office of the Chief Financial Officer, FS, deviated from his official 
travel without prior approval. The investigation further disclosed that even though the 
allegations against Mr. King were substantiated, he was approved for and received a $13,000 
Senior Executive Service (SES) performance award in December 2008 and a 3-percent salary 
increase in January 2009. 

In May 2008, the USDA, Departmental Administration (DA), Office of Human Capital 
Management (OHCM) investigated allegations of misconduct and mismanagement on the part of 
Mr. King concerning his duty station travel and Government issued travel card. The results of 
the OHCM investigation were reported on October 7, 2008, and substantiated the allegations. In 
his interview to OHeM, Mr. King acknowledged that he was not authorized to use the 
Government issued travel card for personal use and admitted to utilizing the card for purchases at 
his duty station when he was not on official travel. Based on their findings, in November 2008, 
OHCM proceeded to draft a "Notice of Proposed Removal" letter and delegated the authority to 
take adverse action to Ms. Abigail Kimbell, former Chief, FS. On January 7, 2009, Ms. Kimball 
issued the "Notice of Proposed Removal" to Mr. King, and he requested a 20-day extension to 
respond, which was granted by Ms. Kimbell. On January 28, 2009, Mr. King responded 
indicating his desire to retire and submitted a retirement application effective March 31, 2009. 
Mr. King retired effective February 3,2009. 
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During the interview process, Ms. Donna Carmical, Chief Financial Officer (CFO), FS stated 
that during the time this issue was ongoing, there was no policy in place for reporting abuse of 
Government credit cards involving SES employees. She stated that the new policy is that 
Government credit card misuse, including delinquent payments, will be reported to the Associate 
Chief. The Associate Chief now reviews the Data Mining Report on Government credit cards. 

In reference to the performance award and salary increase, according to OHCM records, 
Mr. King was recommended for the SES Ratings and Bonus Recommendation for Senior 
Executives award on September 26, 2008, by Ms. Kimbell and Ms. Sally Collins, former 
Associate Chief, FS. The FS is required to submit candidates for performance awards to the 
appropriate Performance Review Board (PRB). According to FS records, a PRB met on 
November 4, 2008, to review SES ratings and bonus recommendations for FS executives. 
The PRB recommended Mr. King receive a "Superior" rating, a 3-percent salary increase, and a 
$13,000 cash award. Once the review is completed, the names are forwarded to OHCM to be 
sent to the Office of the Secretary for final approval. Although the award is based on 
performance, the agency should make the Department aware of misconduct issues that are raised 
during the evaluation period. Misconduct issues may be factored into consideration when 
determining the appropriateness of the performance award. The investigation disclosed that in 
addition to the Chief of FS, several individuals from DA, including Mr. Boyd Rutherford, former 
Assistant Secretary for Administration (ASA) and Mr. Gilbert Smith, Deputy ASA, and Mr. John 
Holladay, Deputy CFO, were all aware of the issues surrounding Mr. King while the 
. performance award review was in process. However, no actions were taken to ensure that this 
information was considered by the Office of the Secretary during the approval process. 

This matter was referred to the U.S. Attorney's Office for the District of Columbia, which 
declined prosecution on this investigation. 

Based on ·the information above, we will not be conducting any additional investigation work on 
this referral. Should you desire additional information about this response, please call me at 
(202) 720-8001, or have a member of your staifcontact Ms. Karen 1. Ellis, Assistant Inspector 
General for Investigations at (202) 720-3306. 

Sincerely, 

Phyllis K. Fong 
Inspector General 

Enclosure 
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SYNOPSIS 

This investigation was conducted to determine if JESSE L. KING eKING), former Associate 
Deputy Chief, Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Forest Service (FS), USDA knowingly misused 
his Government credit card for personal use, failed to pay his Government credit card in a timely 
manner, abused his official position, and violated Federal travel regulations by falsifying his 
official duty station and mismanagement by other FS employees. Also, concerns were raised 
that due to the delays in removing KING from his position, he was able to receive a $13,000 SES 
performance award in December 2008 and a 3% salary increase in January 2009. 

Investigation disclosed that KING used his Government credit card for personal use when he was 
not on official travel. He did not pay the Government credit card balance in full and was 
delinquent. The investigation further disclosed that KING deviated from his official travel 
without receiving prior approval. [n regard to the performance award, based on information from 
OHCM and FS officials although the award is based on performance the agency should make the 
Department aware of misconduct issues that are raised during the evaluation period. BOYD 
RUTHERFORD, former Assistant Secretary for Administration (ASA), GILBERT SMITH, 
Deputy ASA, and JON HOLLADY, Deputy Chief Financial Officer, were all aware of the issues 
surrounding KING, while the performance award review was in process. ABIGAIL KIMBELL, 
former Chief, Forest Service, was also aware of KING's misconduct during the performance 
review period and process for KING. 

BACKGROUND 

In May 2008, the USDA Departmental Administration (DA), Office of Human Capital 
Management (OHCM), received a complaint alleging misconduct and mismanagement on the 
part of KING. It was alleged that KING repeatedly used his Government issued credit card for 
personal use. In addition, it was alleged KING often failed to obtain authorization to deviate 
from his official travel, used Government contract airline fares for personal travel (which 
resulted in additional expenses for the Government) and KING failed to repay the balance on his 
Government issued credit card. Based on the allegations, OHCM initiated an investigation into 
the allegations. The results of the investigation substantiated the allegations. 

Based on the findings in the Report of Investigation, OHCM (Exhibit I), proceeded to draft a 
proposed removal letter and a delegation of authority to take adverse action against KING to be 
forwarded to ABIGAIL KIMBELL (KIMBELL), former Chief, Forest Service. The authority to 
take actions against a Senior Executive Service (SES) employee is the responsibility of the 
Director of OHCM. The Director generally delegates that authority to the head of the agency but 
it can be delegated to the respective agency. On January 7, 2009, the "Notice of Proposed 
Removal" (Exhibit 2) was issued to KING and he immediately requested a 20 day extension to 
respond to the adverse action. On January 9, 2009, KIMBELL approved the request for an 
extension and sent KING a written response approving his request. On January 28, 2009, KING 
submitted a written response to the "Notice of Proposed Removal". [n his response 
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KING indicated his desire to retire and submitted an optional retirement application, effective 
March 31,2009. KING subsequently retired on February 3, 2009. 

On April 14, 2009, the Office of Special Counsel referred similar allegations that were received 
from two whistleblowers regarding KING and other FS employees to the Office of the Secretary 
of Agriculture (OSEC) and requested that the matter be investigated. On April 20, 2009, OSEC 
delegated the authority to investigate and referred the allegations to the Office of Inspector 
General (OlG). 

FALSE STATEMENTS 
18 U.S.C. § 1001 

A review of the Report of Investigation (Exhibit l) submitted by DEBRA GILMORE 
(GILMORE), Senior Employee Relations Specialist, USDA Departmental Administration, 
OHCM, Washington, D.C., disclosed in part, the following: 

On September 26, 2008, KING was interviewed and acknowledged that he was not 
authorized to use the Government travel charge card for personal use. He admitted to 
utilizing the card to charge food, meals, rent cru:s at his duty station in Albuquerque, New 
Mexico, and other transportation costs at or near his personal residence in Houston, 
Texas. KING admitted that all of the charges were when he was not on official travel. 

KING was interviewed (Exhibit 2) and provided the following: 

He advised that his personal and legal residence is in Houston, Texas, and his official 
duty station is in Albuquerque, New Mexico. He did not buy a house or rent an 
apartment in Albuquerque, New Mexico. He stated that when he is in Albuquerque he 
stays with TAMMY HANAN, former Director, ASC, Albuquerque, New Mexico. He 
further advised that he rents a vehicle when he is in Albuquerque, New Mexico, which is 
his official duty station (ODS). 

KING admitted while working at his ODS, he used the Government credit card for 
personal transactions such as car rentals, meals, groceries and other items. He further 
stated that he was aware that the Government credit card is not for personal use, to be 
used when he is not in travel status, and should not be used for any charges at his ODS. 
KING stated this was "stupidity" on his part. KING acknowledged personal charges on 
his Government credit card at various locations. KING also stated that he utilized the 
Government contract fare to include personal travel to Houston on at least six occasions 
between October 2007 and April 2008, and that he did not request authorization to 
deviate his travel. He admitted not paying his Government credit card balance in full and 
being delinquent on several occasions. 

- 2 -
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AGENT'S NOTE: According to NFC records, KING's official residence address is 
A review of Bank of AmerIca 

records show KING's mailing address as 

JEFFREY PARK (PARK) Senior Systems Accountant (GS-14), Financial Management 
Division, FS, Ft. Collins, Colorado was interviewed (Exhibit 3) and providing the following: 

He was assigned to the ASC for about 4 years and held positions to include Supervisory 
Financial Analyst for the Budget and Finance, Claims, Payments and Travel Division, 
and Branch Chief for the Incident Finance Branch. He stated in December 2008, he was 
assigned to the Financial Management Division, Ft. Collins, Colorado. PARK advised 
from approximately February 2008 through the end of April 2008, he was temporarily 
promoted to the Acting Director for Claims, Payments and Travel Division. 

PARK stated that while he was Acting Director that PAMELA SCALCO, Travel Branch 
Chief, Budget and Finance, Claims, Payments and Travel Division, Albuquerque, New 
Mexico came to PARK with a report that indicated KING had misused his Government 
credit card in Albuquerque, New Mexico and Houston, Texas. He stated that the report 
also revealed KING used his Government credit card about thirteen times for meals, 
rental cars and hotels at his ODS in Albuquerque, New Mexico, between January 23, 
2008 and March 23, 2008. PARK stated the report also indicated that KING was 
continually delinquent on paying his account. PARK stated that he discussed the matter 
with MELVIN SHIBUY A (SHIBUY A), Branch Chief, Employee Relations Division, 
Forest Service. SHIBUY A apparently discussed the matter with DONNA CARMICAL 
(CARMICAL) and she advised that PARK was out of line for referring the matter to 
Employee Relations. P ARK stated that SHIB UY A just wanted to do the right thing so 
SHIBUY A reported the matter up the chain of command in Human Capital Management 
(HCM), Forest Service. He stated that CARMICAL and MICHAEL CLONTS, Deputy 
Director, ASC, Albuquerque, New Mexico, stated PARK should have advised them of 
the matter prior to referring it to SHIBUYA. PARK stated the report indicated that 
KING's name had appeared on the Bank of America (BOA) delinquency list several 
times. 

MELVIN SHIBUY A (SHIBUY A), Director, Branch Chief, Employee Relations Division, FS, 
Albuquerque, New Mexico, was interviewed (Exhibit 4) and provided the following information: 

SHIBUY A stated that KING's permanent residence was in Houston, Texas, and his ODS 
was in Albuquerque, New Mexico, but KING used HANAN's home address as his 
official address. He stated that PARK first advised him of the issues related to KING's 
Government credit card. SHIBUY A advised that KING was allegedly utilizing the 
Government credit card to rent cars in Albuquerque, New Mexico, which is his ODS and 
in Houston, Texas, for other purchases. He stated that the misuse of the Government 
credit card was made after KING changed his ODS from Washington, D.C., to 
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Albuquerque, New Mexico, and his Transfer of Station (TOS) temporary quarters had 
ended. SHIBUY A stated the report also indicated that KING was continually delinquent 
on paying his Government credit card account and his name appeared on the Bank of 
America delinquency list on numerous occasions. 

SHIBUY A stated he informed KATHY BURGER, former HR Director, FS, of the 
information provided by PARK relating to issues with KING's Government credit card. 
He was also informed by RON BANERGAS, Acting Director, HR, FS, that he 
(SHIBUYA) should report the misuse of the Government credit card by KING. 

PAMELA SCALCO (SCALCO), Travel Branch Chief, ASC, FS, Albuquerque New Mexico, 
was interviewed (Exhibit 5) and provided the following information: 

She first became aware of KING's delinquencies in the Fall of 2007, when the 
information appeared on the Data Mining Report for the Department. After reviewing 
the information she approached KING about the issues related to his Government credit 

~card and KING advised that it was part of his TOS and he was still in temporary quarters. 
She felt that was a sufficient response and therefore it was no longer an issue. SCALCO 
advised in March 2008, she received additional information on issues with KING's 
Government credit card such as the address on his Government credit card is in 
Albuquerque, New Mexico, he was not making full payment to cover the entire balance 
and the account was consistently delinquent. 

AGENT'S NOTE: A review of US Bank Government credit card records show KING's 
mailing address as 

SCALCO stated CARMICAL advised that she wanted to see the Data Mining Reports on 
all Senior Executive Service (SES) employees but she does not know what CARMICAL 
did with the Data Mining Reports. She stated that other SES employees have been 
delinquent on the Government credit card and some have been suspended. She stated 
KING had an outstanding balance on his US Bank account of approximately $2,858.00 
from January to February 2009, and she had sent two notices (Exhibits 6 & 7) to KING 
regarding the outstanding balance to US Bank. She stated the AD-I39, Final Salary 
Payment Report (Exhibit 8) states that Government credit card balances must be cleared 
prior to separation from the agency although she has seen balances left in limbo after the 
AD-139 is completed. 

AGENT'S NOTE: On July 13, 2009, according to ASC, FS, KING paid the balance of 
$2,858.00 in fujI on his US Bank Government issued credit card. 

SCALCO stated that she went on sick leave starting April 18, 2008, and returned the 
second week of May. During her absence, PARK was the acting Assistant Director and 
SCALCO provided PARK a blue envelope which contained the information on KING's 
possible misuse of his Government credit card. PARK was very upset by KING's 
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possible misuse of the card and advised he was going to look into or take care of it while 
she was on leave. She was informed that during her absence PARK discussed the matter 
with SHIBUY A. In 2008, CARMICAL advised her that OIG or the Department was 
involved with the KING issue and she was later interviewed by a misconduct investigator 
from Headquarters on the KING matter. 

She stated that the Official Travel Authorization for KING's TOS was from June I, 2007 
through September 4, 2008. KING's ODS was Albuquerque, New Mexico, and his 
official residence was in Houston, Texas. KING would spend about one week a month at 
the ASC when his ODS was Washington, D.C., and about the same once his ODS 
changed to Albuquerque, New Mexico. 

AGENT'S NOTE: According to FS records, KING has not filed a Relocation Income Tax 
Allowance for 2007 or 2008. KING was entitled to a SES Separation of 
Travel benefit upon retirement. As of July 3 I, 2009, KING still has not 
submitted a claim for relocation from Albuquerque to Houston, Texas. 

TIM DECOSTER (DECOSTER), Chief of Staff, Office of the Chief, FS, Washington, D.C., was 
interviewed (Exhibit 9) and provided the following information: 

DECOSTER stated that as the Chief of Staff, he reviewed and approved travel vouchers 
for KING. He stated that he had concerns about the appropriateness and accuracy of 
some of the travel vouchers that were submitted by KING. Specifically he noticed 
disruption in KING's travel between Albuquerque, New Mexico and Washington, D.C. 
KING would make stops or have long layovers in Dallas or Houston, Texas. 
DECOSTER stated that KING had a home in one of those cities. He stated that he or the 
Chief of the FS should have approved any deviation in travel prior the trip. 

DECOSTER stated that HANK KASHDAN, Associate Chief, FS, discussed the KING 
credit card issue with him and advised that KING was using the credit card in 
Albuquerque, New Mexico, which is KING's ODS. He stated that he was not aware of 
the proposed adverse action against KING until it was well under way in the process and 
he did not review any of the letters or documents related to the proposed adverse action. 
DECOSTER advised that KIMBELL or KASHDAN may have reviewed the documents 
related to the adverse action. 

DONNA CARMICAL (CARMICAL), Chief Financial Officer, FS, Washington, D.C., was 
interviewed (Exhibit 10) and provided the following information: 

She served as the Director, ASC since March 2007, and reported directly to KING while 
he was the CFO. On July 5, 2009, she started the position as the CFO, FS. In 
April 2008, she first became aware of the issues with KING being past due on his 
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Government issued credit card. She was informed the charges were personal and made 
for food and meals while KING was in Albuquerque, New Mexico, which was his ODS. 
She stated that PARK discussed the issue with SHfBUYA who elevated it up his chain of 
command. 

AGENT'S NOTE: The CFO position was moved back to Washington, D.C., when 
CARMICAL assumed the position ofCFO. 

She stated that during one of her trips to Washington, D.C., she met with KASHDAN at 
his residence and showed him one of KING's travel vouchers because she knew that 
KASHDAN was very familiar with the Federal Travel Regulations. KASHDAN had 
some concernS regarding the travel voucher and requested that when she (CARMICAL) 
returned to the ASC that she forward him all the travel vouchers concerning KING since 
he relocated to Albuquerque, New Mexico. 

She stated during the time this issue was ongoing there was no policy in place for 
reporting abuse of Government credit cards involving SES employees. She stated that 
there is a current policy that Government credit card misuse including delinquent 
payments will be reported to KASHDAN. She also advised that KASHDAN now 
reviews the Data Mining Report on Government credit cards. 

HANK KASHDAN (KASHDAN), Associate Chief, Office of the Chief, FS, Washington, D.C., 
was interviewed (Exhibit 11) and provided the following information: 

He stated that he was the Deputy Chief for BUSIness Operation for 3 years and was 
KING's peer. In January 2009, KASHDAN was promoted to the Associate Chief of the 
FS. KING's travel vouchers were reviewed and approved by DECOSTER or KIMBELL. 
He was aware of the possible misuse of the credit card by KING. CARMICAL 
mentioned the issue to him and stopped by KASHDAN's residence over a weekend and 
showed him one of KING's travel vouchers and wanted to get advice from him. 
KASHDAN stated he noticed a few issues with the travel voucher one was that KING did 
not complete a USDA FS Form 6500-6, Constructive Travel Using Common Carrier Cost 
Comparative Statement (Exhibit 12). He requested that once CARMICAL returned to 
Albuquerque, New Mexico the following week, that she send him all KING's travel 
vouchers since he transferred to Albuquerque, New Mexico. 

He reconstructed KING's travel and noticed that KING would take flights from New 
Mexico to Houston, Texas, and spend significant amounts of time in Texas and then 
travel back to Washington, D.C., and then return to New Mexico. Based on his analysis, 
he immediately contacted KATHLEEN BURGERS (BURGERS), former Director, 
Human Capital Management, FS, and advised her of the matter and requested that she 
contact the appropriate official in the Department to report this matter. BURGERS did 
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refer the matter to the Department. He instructed BURGERS to advise SHlBUYA that 
the KfNG matter had been referred to the Department to handle. KASHDEN stated he 
and KIMBELL implemented a new process and have now instructed ASC that the Data 
Mining Reports be sent directly to the Chiefs office for review and they handle any 
issues with Government credit cards. 

KASHDAN stated that CARMICAL told him KfNG was having issues with his 
Government credit card specifically that he was maintaining high balance and delinquent 
on paying on the account. He was not involved in the KfNG's TOS and stated that 
KIMBELL ultimately made the decision and was the approving official for KfNG 
moving from Washington, D.C. to Albuquerque, New Mexico. He did know that 
KfNG's official residence was in Houston, Texas. 

KASHDAN was interviewed around May 2008, by a Misconduct Investigator in the 
Department regarding issues with KfNG. He stated KIMBELL did ask him to review a 
draft of the Report of Investigation from the Department. He was not involved in 
preparing any documents related to the disciplinary action against KfNG. Although, he 
stated that KIMBELL did show him the "Proposal for Removal Letter" only for 
information, KIMBELL did not request input from him. 

KASHDAN stated that he contacted J. MICHAEL KELLEY (KELLEY), Acting General 
Counsel, Office of the General Counsel, Washington, D.C., to discuss the "Decision 
Letter" that OHCM wanted KIMBELL to issue to KfNG after his retirement date. He did 
not think it made good sense to issue the letter, SO he wanted to consult with OGC. Based 
on the verbal response he received from KELLEY, it appeared that he did not think it 
made sense to issue the letter to KfNG. KASHDAN was concerned that OHCM would 
continue to insist that the letter be issued to KfNG, so he requested that KELLEY 
attended any meetings with OHCM related to this matter. 

ABIGAIL KIMBELL (KIMBELL), former Chief, FS, was interviewed (Exhibit 13) and 
provided the following information: 

She held the position as the Chief of the FS until July 5, 2009, at which time she was 
reassigned to a position as the Director, Research Development, FS, and will be retiring 
effective August 1,2009. KIMBELL stated that during her tenure as the Chief of the FS, 
that she was KfNG's direct supervisor. KIMBELL stated the Chief of Staff reviewed and 
approved travel vouchers for KfNG and she did not recall ever reviewing or approving 
KfNG's travel vouchers but indicated that she may have. In the absence of the Chief of 
Staff, there was no one who acted in this capacity. 
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KIMBELL stated that she first became aware of KING's travel voucher discrepancies 
upon notice of an investigation being conducted by OHCM. At that time she received a 
credit card report that is run by the Department indicating employees' credit card usage, 
payments and delinquencies. She stated this report is run regularly by the Department 
but would go directly to ASC for review and appropriate action. 

KIMBELL stated that once she was made aware of the investigation and KING's credit 
card delinquency, she immediately contacted him. KIMBELL stated that KING was in 
Washington, D.C., for a leadership conference so she was able to speak with him in 
person regarding this matter. KIMBELL stated that she informed KING to take care of 
this matter before he left Washington, D.C. 

KIMBELL also stated at that time she had only received preliminary information 
regarding the investigation by OHCM, she had not yet received a copy of the final report. 
OHCM was waiting to finalize the report/investigation once KING provided his written 
statement. 

KIMBELL stated she reviewed the Report of Investigation from OHCM. She was 
directly involved in the process for the proposed removal of KING. KIMBELL stated 
that she did not directly speak with J. MICHAEL KELLEY regarding this adverse action. 
KIMBELL stated that KELLEY discussed the matter with KASHDAN. She sent an e­
mail to OHCM to arrange a meeting but never received a response. KIMBELL stated 
that she reviewed the decision letter/proposed removal prepared by OHCM. KIMBELL 
stated that she did not like the tone of the letter, made changes to it and it was returned to 
OHCM. She discussed this adverse action with MARK REY, former Under Secretary, 
Natural Resources and Environment, USDA, and later with ANN BARTUSKA, Acting 
Deputy Under Secretary, Natural Resources and Environment, USDA. OHCM continued 
to work on the Decision Letter on KING after her changes and comments regarding the 
tone. She stated KING decided to take an optional retirement and therefore, she made the 
decision not to issue the Decision Letter. 

AGENTS NOTE: KASHDAN and KIMBELL mentioned possible e-mails between FS and J. 
MICHAEL KELLEY, Acting General Counsel, Office of the General 
Counsel (OGC), Washington, D.C., on this matter. We reviewed a few e­
mails regarding KING, however, due to time constraints it was not possible 
to conduct a thorough electronic search for any additional e-mails for review 
prior to the issuance of this report. 
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J. MICHAEL KELLEY (KELLEY), Acting General Counsel, Office of the General Counsel, 
Washington, D.C., was interviewed (ExhibitI4) and provided the following infonnation: 

He stated his knowledge and involvement with the issues surrounding KING was limited. 
He advised that sometime in February 2009, KASHDAN contacted him via telephone 
regarding the proposed adverse action and decision letter related to KING's termination 
from government service. KASHDAN advised KELLEY that officials from the Office of 
Human Capital Management (OHCM), specifically LESLIE VIOLETTE and JILL 
CRUMPACKER wanted KIMBELL to prepare a letter terminating KING from 
Government service. KELLEY advised KASHDAN he did not believe it was necessary 
to issue a proposed termination letter to King since he had retired. 

According to FS records, a Performance Review Board (PRB) met November 4, 2008, consisting 
of the following panel members: MARK REY, Under Secretary for Natural Resources and 
Environment; DR. GERALD BANGE from the Office of the Chief Economist; CAROLYN 
COOKSlE from the Farm Services Agency; HUBERT HAMER from the National Agricultural 
Statistics Service; and JAMES SCHAUB from the Office of the Chief Economist. Performance 
Review Board (PRB) convened to review SES ratings and bonus recommendations for FS 
executives. They recommended KING receive a "Superior" rating, a 3% salary increase, and a 
$13,000 cash award by the PRB (Exhibit 15). 

According to OHCM records, KING was recommended for the "SES Ratings and Bonus 
Recommendation for Senior Executives" award by KIMBELL and SALLY COLLINS, former 
Associate Chief, FS, and they signed the Senior Executive SerVice (SES) on September 26, 2008. 

AGENT'S NOTE: FS is required to submit the candidates for performance awards to the 
appropriate PRB. Once the review is completed the names are forwarded to 
OHCM to be sent to the Office of the Secretary for final approval. The 
award is based on performance but agencies officials should make the 
Department aware when allegations of misconduct are made during the 
process. 

LESLIE VIOLETTE, Director, Departmental Human Resources Division, OHCM advised that 
the criteria for approving the performance awards is outlined in 5 Code of Federal Regulations 
(CFR) 534.405 which states that "to be eligible for an award, the individual must have been an 
SES career appointee as of the end of the performance appraisal period; and the individual's 
most recent performance rating for the appraisal period must have been "Fully Successful" or 
higher." While the CFR states only that the individual must have been a career appointee as of 
the end of the appraisal period with at least a "Fully Successful" rating it does not preclude 
consideration of misconduct during this process. The misconduct issues regarding KING should 
have been considered during this process to avoid potential embarrassment to the Secretary of 
Agriculture and the Department. 
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KASHDAN stated that process for determining performance awards for SES employees is "pre­
set" after the USDA Executive Resources Board makes a recommendation to the Assistant 
Secretary for Administration (ASA), and the Secretary of Agriculture approves the process. The 
amount of the awards is based on the rating level, and is determined at agency discretion, with 
some guidelines regarding the amount being determined by the respective Under Secretary. 
KING's award amount was "predetermined" once his rating of "Superior" was recommended and 
approved. The amount KING received was commensurate with other Forest Service (FS) SES 
employees who received a superior rating. The rating was recommended by KIMBELL on 
approximately September I, 2008. It was approved by the Secretary in approximately mid­
December, 2008 after review by a USDA Performance Review Board and a review by the ASA. 

KASHDAN believes that an award for SES employees can be withheld based on conduct (the 
aspect for which KING was being investigated) even though the award itself is based on 
performance. However, it should be noted that the award was determined and recommended by 
the Chief (KIMBELL) before she received the misconduct report and the award was processed 
by the Department before a final determination was made regarding disposition of the 
misconduct by KING. 

KASHDAN stated the BOYD RUTHERFORD, former ASA, GILBERT SMITH, Deputy AS A, 
and JON HOLLADY, Deputy Chief Financial Officer, were aU aware of the issues surrounding 
KING, while the performance award review was in process. He knew this for a fact, because he 
had conversations with all three about the investigation of KING during this timeframe. As the 
primary USDA official in charge of the SES bonus process, the ASA already had full knowledge 
ofthe allegations against KING. Thus there would have been no reason to raise the issue. 

Exhibit 16 is a Timeline of Events regarding the allegations involving KING. 

This investigation was discussed with an Assistant United States Attorney, District of Columbia, 
Washington, D.C., who declined prosecution on this investigation. 

... ... '" '" ... 
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Description 

Report of Investigation, USDA Departmental 
Administration, Office of Human Capital Management, 
dated October 7, 2008. 

Declaration of Jesse L. King, dated October 2, 2008. 

Memorandum ofInterview, Jeffrey Park, dated 
June 3, 2009. 

Memorandum ofInterview, Melvin Shibuya, dated 
June 8, 2009. 

Memorandum oflnterview, Pamela Scaleo, dated 
June 9, 2009. 

Letter from Albuquerque Service Center, Forest Service, 
dated April 22, 2009. 

Letter from Albuquerque Service Center, Forest Service, 
dated June I, 2009. 

Form AD 139, WO Final Salary Payment Report. 

Memorandum ofInterview, Tim Decoster, dated 
July 9, 2009. 

Memorandum of Interview, Donna Carmical, dated 
July 10,2009. 

Memorandum of Interview, Hank Kashdan, dated 
July 9, 2009. 

Forest Service Form 6500-6, Constructive Travel Using 
Common Carrier Cost Comparative Statement. 

Memorandum of Interview, Abigail Kimbell, dated 
July 29, 2009. 
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Exhibit Page 
Number Description Introduced 

14 Memorandum of Interview, J. Michael Kelley, dated 9 
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15 Performance Appraisal for Jesse L. King, dated 9 
September 26, 2008. 

16 Timeline of Events Regarding Jesse L. King 10 
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Report No. 

Subject: 

Agency: 

Investigation Dates: 

Investigator: 

Witnesses Interviewed:. 

• • 
REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

October 7, 2008 

FS-SES-2008-01-2 

Jesse L. King, Associate Deputy Chief 
Chief Rnancial Officer 

USDA Forest Service 
Albuquerque Service Center 
Albuquerque, New Mexico 

May 6, 2008 to October 3, 2008 

Debra Gilmore 
Senior Employee Relations Specialist 
USDA Departmental Administration 
Office of Human Capital Management 
(202) 720-6891 

Forest Service: 
1. Hank Kashdan, Deputy Chief, Business Operations 
2. TIm DeCoster, Chief of Staff 
3. Donna Carmical, ASC Director 
4. Pam scalco, Supervisory Financial Analyst 
5. Jeff Park, Supervisory Rnancial Analyst 
6. Dennis Gemzer, Supervisorv Financial II,na1yst 
7. Elena Deigado, Supervisory Rnancial Analyst 
8. Vicki Medlin, Financial Analyst 
9. Debbie Baldanado, Financial Analyst 

10. Joni Cook, Staff Assistant 
11. Kathleen Clemens, Special Assistant to Chief of Staff 
12. Marche/le Roberts, Office Automation Clerk 

USDA: 
Aaron Prose, USDA Travel Card Program Manager 
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BASIS fOR INVESTIGATION 

'" The employee's name appeared on a "data mining report" (DMR) prepared by the 

Department's Office of Chief Financial Officer (OCFO). In March 2008, Jesse L. King's name 

was listed as being 60+ days delinquent and on April 24, 2008 was on the pre-suspension 

report because payment was pat due by 47 days. The DMR lists delinquent government 

travel charge accounts and suspicious transactions. 

ALLEGATIONS 

1. KING repeatedly used his government travel charge card for 

personal use. 

2. KING failed to obtain authorization to deviate official travel. 

3. KING used government contract fares for personal travel which 

resulted in additional expense to the government. 

4. KING failed to timely pay his government travel charge in full and 

has repeatedly allowed his account to become delinquent. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Jesse L. King is the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) for the Forest Service, a senior executive 

service (SES). Forest Service policy, 6509.33-2007-2, approved by KING on April 20, 2007 

states "It is the responsibility of the Forest Service Chief Rnancial Officer to prescribe policy 

and procedures that establish financial control over the Forest Service's travel process." 

KING was appointed as the CFO on July 25, 2004. After the establishment of the Forest 

Service's Albuquerque Service Center (ASe) which has Human Resources and Budget and 

Finance operations, KING made a request of the Abigail Kimbell, Chief, Forest Service to work 

out of the ASC. The Chief approved the reCjuest and effective September 30, 2007 (FY 08) 

KING was reassigned from Washington DC to Albuquerque. The Forest Service authorized 

and paid his transfer of station (TOS) costs. KING'S TOS temporary quarters expenses ended 

December 19, 2007. KING elected not to move to Albuquerque and instead purchased a 

home in Houston TX where he and his wife have family and plan to retire. As part of his 

EXH!BIT-=:---I-I __ 
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TOS, the Agency paid for a "one-way" move to Houston after a cost comparison was 

= calculated and it was determined there would be no increased cost to the Forest Service. 

KING does not have a residence in Albuquerque. KING stays at his.friends' (Jim and Tammy 

Hannon) home at 9250 Glendale Ave NE when he is in Albuquerque. Ms. Hannon is the 

former ASC director. KING does not have a car in Albuquerque. 

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS 

The facts support the allegations. During an interview on September 26, 2008, KING 

acknowledged he is aware he is not "supposed to" use the government travel charge card for 

personal use, but he ADMITTED he had done so. He acknowledged chargIng food, meals, 

and rental cars at his duty station location (Albuquerque NM) and charged transportation (car 
--

service and rental cars) at/riear his personal residence (Houston 1X) and that aU of the 

charges were when he was not on official travel. KING stated it was "stupidity" on his part. 

(Exhibit 2) 

KING ADMITTED he did not request authorization to take an indirect route through Houston 

TX when traveling official bUsiness. KING ADMITTED his used the government contract fares 

to travel for personal reasons to Houston. KING cfaimed travel to Houston did not cost the 

government more than if he had not travelled Houston and stated that sometimes the air 

fare was less. Documentary evidence from Fed Traveler and GSA Airline City Pair Program 

information reveals the YCA contract fare from Albuquerque to Washington DC and 
• 

Albuquerque to Portland OR is significantly less than the fares KING elected and the 

government was charged. (Exhibit 6-A and 6-8) 

KING ADMITTED he has not paid the government travel charge card balance in full and he 

has been delinquent on several occasions. KING acknowledged he knows the requirement 

to pay in full and to pay when the balance is due. KING acknowledged that as of September 

26, 2008 his account is past due in the amount of $3,909.24 (Exhibit 2 and 3-8) 

EXHIBIT,,--L-I __ 
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The "High Level Analysis Report" provided to the Department by Sank of America reveals 

= that since receiving the government travel charge card, KING has had 52 "total delinquency 

occurrences." In a lO-month evaluation period (December 2007 - September 2008) KING 

was delinquent every month. (Exhibit 2-E and 3-D). 

The investigation revealed KING knew his actions were in violation of government travel 

regulations; KING himself has approved Forest Service policy and issued direction to Forest 

Service officials on these travel-related matters (Exhibits 5-C, 5-0, 6-C, 6-0, and 6-E). 

NOTE: KING was informed that a declaration for his signatUre would be prepared and sent 

to him to review and sign and return to the investigator. Since forwarding the declaration to 

KING he has not responded to the investigator's e-mails or telephone calls. A draft copy of 

the declaration sent to KING is attached at Exhibit 2. 

DETAILS Of INVESTIGATION 

Allegation No.1 - KING repeatedly used his government travel 
charge card for personal reasons. 

Relevant regulations 

Federal Travel Regulations, Sections 301-304 (Exhibit 5-A); Departmental R.egulation (DR) . , .' 

2300-001 (Exhibit 5-S-1, Section 5); Forest Service Handbook, 6509.33 (Exhibit 5-C). The 

USDA's 'Travel Card Do's and Don'ts for Employees" (Exhibit 6-F) also detail the prohibition 
- -

of personal use. 

DR 2300-001 states in pertinent part, the "USDA Zero Tolerance Policy" strictly prohibits 

unauthorized charges and charges not associated with official travel; and charges while not 

in an official travel status. Personal use of the card and use of the card in the vicinity of the 

official duty station or residence is "forbidden." (Exhibit 5-8-2, Section 5 - PoliCY). 

EXH!BIT_-,-f __ 
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ELENA DELGADO, Supervisol)' Financial Analyst in the Travel and Payments, Special Accounts 

:: Section declared that KING'S name appeared on the Department's "data mining report" 

(DMR) on at least two occasions when KING'S government travel charge card was past due 

by 47 days and because he also had suspicious transactions. BofA's High Level Analysis 

Report reveals that KING's account was not suspended and he was never identified as being 

"mission critical." (Exhibit 3-D). 

DELGADO stated KING'S charges were "suspicious" as they were for food, restaurants, rental 

cars, and hotels in KING'S duty location (Albuquerque NM) and residence city area (Houston 

TX) and the transaction dates were outside his TOS travel temporal)' quarters period and the 

transaction dates were not part of any TDY vouchers submitted by KING. (Exhibit 2-H) 

DELGADO said she shared the DMR information with her supervisor, PAM SCALCO, 

Supervisol)' Financial Analyst. DELGADO AND SCALCO both stated that SCALCO told 

DELGADO she would address the matter with KING. (Exhibit 2-F and 2-H). SCALCO also 

said this to JEFF PARK (Exhibit 2-G). SCALCO said she spoke to KING and he told her the 

charges for food in Albuquerque were related to his TOS. SCALCO accepted this response 

without further inquil)'. (Exhibit 2-F, 2-H and Exhibit 2-1). KING remembers SCALCO 

talked to him about his name appearing on the data mining report, but does not recall what 

was discussed. (Exhibit 2) 

JEFF PARK, former Acting Director of the Claims and Payment Section stated that he 

discussed KING'S name on the DMR with SCALeO and after he thought about SCALCO only 

talking to KING about the matter, he did not feel that was sufficient or appropriate action. 

PARK believed the issue needed to be elevated. In accordance with FSH travel policy, 

6509.33, PARK informed Melvin Shibuya, Human Resources Management staff of the 

allegation. (Exhibit 2-6) 
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DELGADO indicated that after SCALCO discussed this matter with KING he continued to use 

"" the government travel card for personal use when not in travel status. (Exhibit 2-H) The 

BofA EAGLS report reveals the most recent "personal charge" was September 8, 2008 at 

Dollar Rent A Car in Albuquerque in the amount of $141.57. (Exhibit 3-B) 

DELGADO said that as the CFO KING is well aware of government travel regulations and 

agency policy as he approved policy and issued letters on these subjects (Exhibit 6-C, 6-D, 

and 6-E) and he signed a Bank of America charge card application form in 2003. In agreeing 

to the terms of the use of the government card, KING agreed to use the card for official 

travel and official travel related expenses away his duty station. (Exhibit C-3) DELGADO 

also indicated that KING issued a letter to Regional Foresters dated July 5, 2006 reiterating 

the Department's "Zero Tolerance Policy" on travel card misuse. Attached to KING'S letter 

was a copy of the USDA Chief Financial Officer's June 15, 2006 letter indicating the "Zero 

Tolerance Policy" (which is also cited in DR 2300-001, Exhibit B-2) strictly prohibits misuses 

of the travel charge card and identifies misuse as "Unauthorized charges and charges not 

associated with official travel" and "Charges while not in an official travel status ... " (Exhibit 

1-' 6-D Also see Exhibit 5-8-2, pages 3 and 4) 

DENNIS GEMZER, former Supervisory Financial Analyst at the ASC stated that the 

govemment travel card is not to be used for personal charges and KING'S use Is a blatant 

misuse In violation of the Fede(ai Travel R.egulations (FTR), Departmental Regulation and 

Forest Service policy. (Exhibit H) GEMZER stated that prior to this investigation ASC 

. employees becall)e aware of KING'S_.misuse, as a normal course of their duties, and it 

appeared Center management was protecting him. 

An analysis of KING'S TOS and TDY vouchers from 8/30/07 to 4/04/08 (Exhibits 4-B to 4-0) 

and a review of the Bank of America account inquiry report of 4/24/08 (Exhibit 3-A) reveal 

the thirteen (13) transactions listed below in Table 1 were not claimed on any travel voucher 

nor did the charges occur during a time when KING was in an official travel status. 

EXHIBIT_-:I __ 
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TABLE 1 

Transaction Date Merchant City State Amount 
= 

1. 1-23-08 Thrifty Rental Car* Albuquerque NM $ 215.69 

2. 1-28-08 I Residence Inn Albuquerque NM $ 84.66 

3. 1-30-08 Thrifty Rental Car* Albuquerque NM $ 106.33 

4. 2-11-08 City of Albuquerque Albuquerque NM $ 21.00 

5. 2-12-08 Intlap Albuquerque NM $ 15.08 

6. 2-16-08 Thrifty Rental Car* Albuquerque NM $ 381.62 

7. 3-01-08 Thrifty Rental Car Albuquerque NM $ 222.14 

8. 3-08-08 Pappadeaux Seafood Albuquerque NM $ 46.96 

9: 3-10-08 Thrifty Rental Car Albuquerque NM $ 89.06 

10. 3-18-08 Thrifty Rental Car Dallas TX $ 134.01 

11. 4-14-08 Pop-A-lock Rio Rancho NM $ 50.00 

12. 4-15-08 Smith Grocery - Albuquerque NM $ 28.83 

13. 4-16-08 Smith Grocery Albuquerque NM $ 12.48 

TOTAL $1407.86 

A subsequent analysis of KING'S TDY vouchers covering the period 5/08/08 to 8/28/08 

(Exhibit 4-P) and Bank of America account inquiry report dated 9/24/2008 (Exhibit 3-8) 

reveals twenty three (23) additional personal charges. 

Table 2. on the foHowing page shows the charges on KING'S government traver card'that 

were not claimed on any travel voucher and which did not occur during a time when KING 

was in an official travel status. 
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= TABLE 2 

I Transaction Date I Merchant City State Amount I 
I 1. 5-0S-0S I I Wireless I Houston TX $ 37.S3 I 

2. 5-19-0S Thrifty Car Rental Albuquerque NM $ 340.40 

3. 5-21-0S Dollar Rent A Car Albuquerque NM $ 111.28 

4. 5-22-0S Thrifty Car Rental Albuquerque NM $ 76.51 

5. 5-2S-0S Dollar Rent A Car Albuquerque NM $ 173.91 

6. 6-02-08 Thrifty Car Rental Albuquerque NM $ 111.46 

7. 6-20-08 C&S Exec. Transportation TX,77380 $ 110.00 

8. 6-20-0B Bravo Uptown Albuquerque NM $ 23.53 

9. 6-21-08 Smith's Food Albuquerque NM $ 23.73 

10. 6-21-08 Starbucks Albuquerque NM $ 3.98 

11. 6~22-08 Chevron Albuquerque NM $ 30.62-

12. 6-23-08 Thrifty Car Rental Albuquerque NM $ 11?91 

13. 7-04-08 Thrifty Car Rental Houston TX $ 167.60 

14. 7-09-08 Red Brick Pizza Albuquerque NM $ 10.36 

15. 7-09-08 Chevron Albuquerque NM $ 3B.31 

16. 7-10-08 Trader Joe's Albuquerque NM $ 10.44 

17. 7-10-08 Smith's Food Albuquerque NM $ 59.08 

18. 7-11-0S Cafe Voila Albuquerque NM $ 18.92 
, 

19. 7-14-08 Thrifty Car Rental A/buquE'r'1ue NM. -$-125:38 " 

20. 7-21-0B Dollar Rent A Car Albuquerque NM $ 69.43 

21. 7-2B-OB Thrifty Car Rental Albuquerque NM $ 104.05 

22. 8-18-08 Thrifty Car Rental Albuquerque NM $ 259.02 

23. 9-0B-OB Dollar Rent A Car Albuquerque NM $ 141.57 

TOTAL $2,167.32 

Tables 1 and 2 above reveal a total of thirty-six (36) personal transactions KING made using 

the government travel charge card between January 23, 2008 and September 8, 2008 and 

the transactions total $3,575.18. 
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When interviewed on September 26, 2008, KlNG admitted he used the government travel 

~ charge card for personal purchases for food, meals and car rental companies at several 

merchants including Pappadeaux Seafood, Smith's Food, Trader Joe's, Dollar Rent A Car, Thrifty Car 

Rental and he admitted he was not in a travel status when he used the card at his duty 

station. (Exhibit 2-A) KING admitted he knew he was not supposed to use the card, that it 

was his "stupidity" and "poor judgment" on his part. (Exhibit 2-A) 

The investigation reveals that on three occasions (noted in Table 1 with an asterisk), KING'S 

government travel card was used to rent cars at Thrifty Car Rental in Albuquerque (Exhibit 3-

A, pages 5, 8 and 11) and the transaction dates are when KING was in a travel status and 

not in Albuquerque. (Exhibits 4-E, 4-F, and 4-G). KING stated he does not how this 

happened and this must be "wrong." KING indicated he never rented a car for another 

person, never lost his card or had it stolen and normally didn't rent a car and leave it at the 

airport while he traveled. KING said he did do that once because it was cheaper than turning 

the car in when he flew out of Albuquerque and renting a new car when he flew back to 

Albuquerque. 

I Allegation Nos. 2 and 3 - KING failed to obtain authorization to 
deviate his official travel and KING used government contract fares 
for personal travel which resulted in a cost to the government. 

Relevant Regulations: 

FTR 301-1.105 2 (b) (Exhibit 5-A) states "Trips that combine official and personal travel are 

considered 'constructive travel' under the Federal Travel Regulations which could involve (1) 

a combination of business and personal travel, (2) annual leave taken during an official trip, 

and (3) deviations for personal convenience from the normal mode of transportation or 

itinerary." The FTR requires constructive travel to have "written approval from the 

employee's supervisor" by completing Form FS-6500-6, "Constructive Travel Using Common 

Carrier." (Exhibit 5-E) 

EXHiBIT I 
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FTR 301-1.105 2 (c) (Exhibit 5-A) states employees' supervisors must complete FS-6500-6 

~ section B to approve annual leave taken in conjunction with official travel. 

GEMZER stated the Forest Services uses "blanket" travel authorizations for TOY travel for 

each employee, each year so employees can travel during the year without obtaining an 

individual authorization number each time the employee travels. GEMZER stated a "blanket" 

travel authorization number however does not mean travel is approved. Employees must 

obtain authorization for each trip before expenses are incurred. (Exhibit 2-I) GEMZER also 

stated if an employee wants to include personal travel with their government travel, the 

Forest Service requires a "cost comparison," FS-6500-6 (Exhibit 5-E) to be prepared and 

approved prior to travel; not at the time the voucher Is submitted for payment. 

A review of five of the sixtravel vouchers and Fed Traveler receipts obtained during this 

investigation for the period of October 17, 2007 to February 22, 2008 (Exhibits 4E - 4K) 

reveals KING traveled from Albuquerque to Washington DC through Houston TX on four 

occasions and from Albuquerque to Portland on one occasion and did not complete the 

required constructive travel/cost comparison form. (Exhibit 2-A and 2-D) 

KING admitted not completing a FS-6500-6 form prior to travelling. KING stated he used 

the contract fare for travel that included Houston, but he always did a cost comparison to 

confirm the fare he was purchasing was not more expensive than another route. KING said 

he repeatedly checked fares online through Fed Traveler's Quik Quote. KING did not include 

caples of these comparisons or quotes with h is travel vouchers or print and retain copies of 

the comparative information. KING stated he submitted at least one 6500-6 form after 

travelling and submitting his voucher to TIM DECOSTER. KING stated the form was 

requested by DECOSTER'S assistant KATHLEEN CLEMMONS' was being "nit picky." (Exhibit 

2-A) Chief of Staff DE~OSTER stated that he did not know KING lived in Houston or that he 

deviated his official travel until after CLEMMONS' requested the 6500 form a·few months ago. 

(Exhibit 2-D and 2-J) 
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KING stated that the trips he made to/through Houston never cost the government more 

than the fare he would have purchased had he taken a more direct route (e.g. Albuquerque 

(through Dallas/Forth Worth) to Washington DC). KING stated that on at least one occasion 

a trip to Houston saved the government money. (Exhibit 2-A) 

The investigation revealed that as part of the General Services Administration (GSA) Airline 

City Pair Program, government employees are required to use the contract carrier and obtain 

a contract fare (with few exceptions) and that use of the contract fare is limited to official 

travel only. Employees are not allowed to use a contract fare for personal travel, even if in 

conjunction with official government travel. GSA indicates contract fares are identifiable by 

the fare deSignator "YCA" and the "YCA" fare is a "guaranteed GSA economy class Airline City 

Pair fare." (Exhibit 6-A) 

Table 3 below details inFormation from KING'S travel vouchers (Exhibits 4E - 4K) for the 

period of 10/17/07 and 4/04/08 in which KING traveled to Houston and used contract fares 

while mixing personal and official travel on six occasions. 

TABLE 3 

Dares of Travel I Travel from I Travel To I Deviation City & Dates I FarePaidj 

3/31/08 - 4/04/08 I Albuquerque I DC 1 Houston I 
I 2/15/08 -2/22/08 I Albuquerque I DC I Housto~. 2f15fO&·-2/18/08 5757.00 

1'1.2/20/07-1/16/08 I Albuquerque 
, I Houston, 12/20/07-1/06/08 (Al) IDC $681.30 

17/10/07-12/16/08 Albuquerque DC Houston, 12/14/06-12/16/07 $471.40 

11/17/07-12/04/08 Albuquerque DC Houston. 11/17/07-11/25107 (AL) $752.50 I I - - . . 

10/17/07-10/22/07 Albuquerque Portland Houston, 10/19/07-10/22/07 $746.50 

Contact was made with Fed Traveler to obtain the contract fares from Albuquerque to 

Washington National and Albuquerque to Portland, OR for the above dates of travel. A 

. supplemental report will be issued upon receipt of this information. 

EXHIBiT __ ~~_ ~ __ 
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The General Services Administration (GSA) Airfares City Pair Program indicates for FY 08, the 

;; YCA unrestricted government contract fare from Albuquerque to Washington DC CDCA") is 

$310. The FY 08 YCA unrestricted contract fare from Albuquerque to Portland is $279. The 

Quik Quote obtained on 4/29/08 and provided by HANK KASDAN, Deputy Chief, Business 

Operations indicates the Federal Government non-restrictive YCA contract fare on American 

Airlines from Albuquerque to Washington DC (Regan National "DCA") through Dallas TX was 

$354.50 (sample date of 5/9/08 leaving at 7 a.m.) (Exhibit 6-8) 

As of May 1, 2008, Agricultural Travel Regulations, DM 2300-001 provide specific procedures 

when employees want to "mix" official and personal (leisure) travel. (Exhibit 5-B-l, page 10) 

I Allegation No.4 - KING failed to timely pay his government travel I 
I charge in full and has repeatedly allowed his account to become I 
I delinquent. I 

Relevant Regulations: 

Employees are required to submit travel vouchers within five (5) days of the completion of 

travel; Federal Travel Regulation (FrR) 301-52.7 (Exhibit 5-A) and FSH 6509.33 301-52.7 

(Exhibit 5-C). Employees are required to timely pay their government travel card in full, 

regardless of whether reimbursement has been received. FTR 301-52.24 (Exhibit 5-A); FSH 

6509.33 301-51.84h (Exhibit 5-C); and Bank of America cardholder agreement (Exhibit 3-e). 

Government Travel Card Regulation, Departmental Regulation (DR) 2300-001 and "USDA 

"Zero Tolerance Policy" (Exhibit 6-D) prohibits employees from allowing their account to 

become delinquent. (Exhibit 5-B-2 Section 5 d) 

Travel card delinquency is also addressed by K!NG in his letter dated February 14, 2005 

(Exhibit 6-E) and the "Travel Card Do's and Don'ts for Employees" (Exhibit 6-F). The Do's 

and Don'ts states "Don't allow your travel card account to become delinquent. Delinquency 

occurs on the first day after the due date." 

fXI·H8fT_.-.:.....' __ 
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When interviewed DELGADO (Exhibit 2-H) stated that KING'S name appeared on the DMR 

!E for being past due by 44 days (Exhibit 3-B) and for being in pre-suspense (Exhibit 3-A). 

The use of the data mining report is referenced in the CFO's letter attached to KfNG'S letter 

to Forest Service officials relative to USDA's travel card "Zero Tolerance" policy (Exhibit 6-0). 

A review of the Bank of America account inquiry report dated April 24, 2008 (Exhibit 3-A) 

reveals that as of April 23, 2008, KING'S account was past due (page 2). KING had a 

balance of $11,910.25 and was past due in the amount of $3,281.44. Payment of less than 

the full amounts due were made on January 23, 2008 (page 4); January 28, 2008 (page 7); 

February 5, 2008 (page 9); and February 8, 2008 (page 9). 

A review of the Bank of America account inquiry report dated September 24, 2008 (Exhibit 3-

B) reveals KING currently has an outstanding travel card balance of $10,391.14 and of that 

amount $3,909.24 is 30 days past due. (Exhibit 3-B, page 2) DELGADO also stated instead' 

of paying the balance in full each month as required, in June 2008, KING made seven small 

payments (Exhibit 3-8, page 8). 

DELGADO indicated that after SCALeO discussed this matter with KING he continued to use 

the government travel card for personal purchases and continues to pay less than the fuJi 

payment due on his account. DELGADO indicated in the month of June 2008, KING made 

seven small payments between June 2, 2008 and June 4, 2008 (Exhibit 3-A, page 8) and his 

account continues to be past due. (Exhibit 2-H) DELGADO stated that the Bank of America 

EGLS report shows that as of September 24,2008, KING has a balance of $10,391.14 and 

$3,909.24 is past due. (Exhibit 3-A). BofA's High Level Analysis Report dated 10/3/2008 

reveals KING made no payment in July 2008; that between December 2007 and September 

2008 (10 month period), his account was delinquent every month; and that his account has 

been delinquent 52 times in the 68 months he has had a card. This indicates KING has been 

delinquent 75% of the time. (Exhibit 3-D) 

EXHIBIT _____ .'-1 __ 
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CONCLUSION 

The documentary evidence included in this report indicate KING used his government travel 

charge card for personal use (meals, food, car rentals, transportation) on thirty-six occasions 

between January 23, 2008 and September 8, 2008, totaling $3,575.18 in unauthorized 

personal charges. KING admitted he knew he was not allowed to use the card for personal 

reasons and it was "stupid" and "poor judgment" on his part. 

The facts support KING deviated official travel without obtaining authorization; he used 

government contract fares for personal travel he mixed with official travel; and the flights 

and fares obtained resulted in an additional expense to the government than if KING had not 

booked his personal travel with his official travel and/or stopped in Houston. 

KING repeatedly failed to pay his account in full by the due date and repeatedly allowed his 

travel card account to become and delinquent. KING's account was in a delinquent status 

more than it was current. 

USDA Government Travel Regulations, Departmental Regulation 2300-001 (Exhibit 5-B-2), 

states DTravel card delinquency and misuse are examples of serious employee 

misconduct." Accordingly, included in this report of investigation are government 

reg",lations; Standards of Conduct, Agency policy on employee responsibilities and conduct 

and addressing misconduct and diSciplinary/adverse actions. (Exhibits 6-H, 6-r, 6-J, 6-K, and 

6-L) 

Debra J. Gilmo 
Senior Employee Relations Specialist 
USDA Departmental Administration 
Office of Human Capital Management 
(202) 720-6891 

EXHIElfT I ..,------,-
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DECLARATION OF JESSE L. KING 

I, Jesse L King, make the following declaration freely and voluntarily to Ms. 

Debra Gilmore. On September 26, 2008, I spoke with Ms. Gilmore by phone for 

approximately one-hour. She identified herself as a Senior Employee Relations 

Specialist conducting an investigation for the Department of Agriculture (USDA), 

and made me aware that the information I provided in the interview and this 

declaration would be used as evidence and included in a report investigation that 

will be provided to Forest Service officials. 

I began working for the Department of Agriculture In October 2001. On 

July 25,2004 I was converted from the.Confidential Assistant position I held to 

the SES position of Associate Deputy Chief, Chief Rnancial Officer (CFO) for the 

Forest Service. Prior to jOining USDA I worked for the private sector. On 

September 3D, 2007, my duty station changed from Washington DC to 

Albuquerque so I could work out of the new Albuquerque Service Center (ASe) 

where the Budget & Finance (B&F) operations were now located. The Chief of the 

Forest Service approved a transfer of station (TOS) for this reassignment. The 

TOS period for my temporary quarters (TQ) ended December 19, 2007. During 

my TOS TQ period, I was in and out of TOS status as j also had rOY travel. 

Debbie Baldanado, at the ASC was my TOS travel counselor and she helped me 

with the TOS vouchers to ensure the correct TOS claims were made (e.g. house 

hunting, TQ, and one-way move). 

As part of my TOS, my Wife and I took a house hunting trip to 

Albuquerque. After looking at homes in the area, we deCided it would be too 

expensive to invest in a house in Albuquerque for a short period of time. Since we 

have a married son and grandchildren in Houston, 1)( we decided to buy in 

Houston where we will eventually retire. My personal and legal residence is 

EXHiBIT ;;L ._---
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Houston TX and my duty station is Albuquerque. I did not buy a house or rent an 

apartment in Albuquerque. When I am in Albuquerque I' stay with Tammy 

Hannon (former ASC manager) and her husband Jim. Their house is vacant most 

of the time so when I am there I house-sit. As I do not have a car in New 

Mexico, I rent cars when I am there. 

I ·admit· that while working at my duty station of Albuquerque, I used my 

government travel charge card for personal transactions (car rentals, meals, 

groceries, etc.). I was aware at that time that I was not supposed to use the 

travel card for personal use, when I am not in a travel status or for charges at my 

duty location. This was "stupidity" on my part. 

I acknowledge that the charges on my government travel card at locations 

like Garduno's, Pappadeaux, Scott's Foods, Trader Joes and Thrifty Car Rental and 

Dollar Rent a Car at my duty location city of Albuquerque were personal charges 

and they were made when I was not in offiCial travel status. I also admit that I 

used the government travel charge card for personal transportation expenses (car 

service, car rental) when I deviated official travel and traveled to Houston for 

personal reasons. I knew at the time I made these charges that the use of the 

travel card for these types of transactions was inappropriate. It was poor 

judgment on my part. I never claimed these personal charges on any travel 

vouchers and did not receive reimbursement from the government. As a result of 

this inquiry and because I realized I should not be dOing it, I stopped using the 

government travel card for personal use in August 2008. 

During my interview with Ms. Gilmore, she asked me about 3 instances in 

which a car was rented at Thrifty Car Rental in Albuquerque and charged on my 

government travel card. I understand the dates in which the cars were rented 

2 



". " 

were when I was on official travel and not in Albuquerque where the rental 

occurred. Ms. Gilmore indicated the dates and charges were 1-23-08 for $215.69; 

1-30-08 for $106.33; and on 2-16-08 for $381.62. For the period of January 23, 

2008, I was in San Jose visiting Oracie, so I don't know how this could be. I don't 

know about the other two charges. They don't sound right. There was only one 

time where I rented a car in Albuquerque and left it at the airport so it was there 

when r returned from travel as it was cheaper to do that then turn the car in and 

rent another one when I came back. One of these charges may have been tha t 

occasion. r never rented a car for another person; I never loaned my travel card 

to anyone else and it has never been lost or stolen. 

I acknowledge that I used the government contract fare to include personal 

travel (airfare) to Houston on six occasions between October 2007 and April 2008. 

I did not request authorization to deviate my official travel to include Houston on 

any of these occasions. I claimed and was reimbursed the full cOf1tract fare for the 

trips that included Houston as a stop or layover on my travel vouchers. I did not 

make. any deductions for travel in which I laid over Houston as there was never an 

additional cost to the government. I did not think what I did was improper, as 

many times the government paid less for my airfare. I never booked through 

Houston when it was a higher cost. I constantly searched Fed Traveler by putting 

in the routing and the dates to look for the lowest fare at the time I needed to 

travel. I did not submit copies of the Fed Traveler quick quotes or searches with 

my travel voucher nor did I retain copies of this comparison information. I did not 

complete a FS Form 6500-6 in advance to include the indirect travel or for periods 

of annual leave I took when in Houston. 

r also acknowledge that I allowed my government travel card to become 

delinquent. I have not paid the balance in full when due on several occasions. In 

April 2008 and June 2008, I did not pay the balance in full by the due date and 
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instead made several small payments. I understand that as of September 26, 

2008, I was currently $3,909.24 past due. 

The procedure for submitting and approving travel vouchers in our office 

has change. I used to send the original travel vouchers to Hank Kashdan, Deputy 

Chief, Business Operations for approval. This changed about the time the new 

Chief of Staff, Tim DeCoster came on board. I know send my original vouchers 

and receipts to Mr. DeCoster to review and approve, but I don't send him the 

electronic copy. I was instructed to send that to Marchelie'Rober):s, GS-6 clerk in 

the Chief'S Office.- I understand that after Mr. DeCoster's Assistant, Kathleen 

Clemens reviews the hard copy voucher and receipts, she gives it to Mr. DeCoster 

to sign and then a message is relayed back to Ms. Roberts to approve the voucher 

on Mr. DeCoste(s behalf and forward the voucher electronically to NFC for 

payment. After the original voucher is approved, it is returned to me by Mr. 

DeCoster's office. I then forward it to the ASC (Donna Carmical's aSSistant) to file. 

r don't bel/eve any copies are maintained by Mr. DeCoster or Ms. Clemens. 

On several occasions, the approval of my travel vouchers has been delayed 

(thus my reimbursement delayed) as a result of Ms. Clemens being "nit picky." It 

seems she cannot apply information learned with a prior voucher to the same 

circumstances when the issue comes up again. Ms. Clemens has never discussed 

a deficient voucher with me but r know she has spoken to my assistant in DC, ]onl 

Cook. Ms. Cook relayed to me that Ms. Clemens demanded that r submit a 6500-

6 cost comparison form after I had traveled to Houston and was on annual leave. 

I completed a form after the fact, which showed there was no cost to the 

government; in fact it was less expensive. Ms. Clemens did not seem to 

understand why I was flying through Dallas TX when flying to DC. I tried to 

explain that the contract carrier out of Albuquerque is American Airlines (AA) and 
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there are no direct or non-stop flights from Albuquerque to Washington DC, 

Dallas/Forth Worth is one of the city-pair connections for AA's contract route/fare. 

The only other time I recall there being a question on a travel voucher was 

when Mr. Kashdan found a mechanical mistake and asked that I make a 

correction. I had claimed 3;" per diem one day while in Houston and I was not 

__ entit/edJoJt as HoustonJs. notmY.duty station .. _ . ___ _ 

I also remember a few months ago, Pam Scalco, a supervisory financial 

analyst in the travel section at the ASC mentioned to me that my name was on 

the data mining report and may have asked me about charges made in 

Albuquerque and being late on my payments. I do not recall what she said. I 

remember we were in my office but she did not show me the report and I did not 

ask to see it. If she told me I had done something wrong, my response to her 

would have been to tell her that I wouldn't do it again. 

I declare that the foregoing is true and correct to the best of my knowledge 

and belief. 

Executed this 2nd day of Cctober ZOCS. 

!1'esse L. King 

J 
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MEMORANDUM OF INTERVIE\V 

Name: Jeffrey Park 

Address: USDA Forest Service 
Ft. Collins, Colorado 

Phone: (970) 295-5830 - office 

Case Number: HY-0801-0094 

Date: June 3,2009 

SACs): SA Maria Crann 
SA Harold Stanford 

On Tuesday, June 3, 2009, Special Agent (SA) Maria Crann and Special Agent (SA) Harold 
Stanford interviewed Jeffrey Park (PARK) at the Virginian Suites Hotel, 1500 Arlington Blvd., 
Rosslyn, Virginia, in regards to an on-going investigation of subject, JESSE KINO. PARK is a 
Senior System Accountant, Financial Management Division for the USDA Forest Service 
located in Ft. Collins, Colorado. 

According to PARK: 

P ARK currently resides at 
IS 

home phone number 

PARK is currently a Senior Systems Accountant (OS-14), Financial Management 
Division, USDA Forest Service, Ft. Collins, Colorado. 

PARK stated that he was assigned to the Albuquerque Service Center CASC) for about 
4 years. 

PARK stated that his last position at ASC was a Supervisory Financial Analyst, OS-50 1-
14 in the Budget and Finance, Claims, Payments and Travel Division and was the!?.r:ap.cp. 
Chief of the Incident Finance Branch. . 

PARK stated in December 2008, he was assigned to the Financial Management Division 
in Ft. Collins, Colorado. 

PARK stated that he has 30 years of government service all with the Forest Service. 

PARK stated that his I 51 line supervisor is Debra Bush Butler, Rosslyn, Virginia. 

PARK stated that his second line supervisor is Karen Alexander, Director of Financial 
Management, Rosslyn, Virginia. 

In reference to his current complaint with the Office of Special Counsel (OSC), PARK advised 
the following: 

;::XHIBIT~.:J_2 __ 
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PARK stated that he reported issued related to Jessie King, reprisal and prohibited 
personnel practices to OSC in (date) ...... . 

PARK stated that OSC sent him a letter advising they had referred. the matters related to 
the Secretary of Agriculture and that OSC would be investigating the reprisal and 
prohibited personnel practices. 

PARK stated that OSC recently advised him it would be at least 3 months or so before 
they will start the investigation. 

[n reference to Jesse.King and the government credit card issue, PARK advised the following: 

PARK advised from February 2008 until the end of April 2008, he was temporarily 
promoted to Acting Director of the Claims, Payment and Travel Division and reported 
directly to Donna Carmical, former Director, ASC and Michael Clonts, Deputy Director, 
ASC. 

PARK indicated that while he was Acting Director of Claims, Payment and Travel 
Division, one of the staff, Pam Scaleo came to PARK with a report that indicated Jesse 
King had misused his government travel card in Albuquerque, New Mexico and Houston, 
Texas. 

PARK stated that the report also revealed King used his government travel card about 
thirteen times for meals, rental cars and hotels at his official duty station in Albuquerque, 
New Mexico, between January 23, 2008 and March 23, 2008. 

PARK stated he knew that King residence was in Houston, Texas, but he was using 
Tammy Hanan's (former Director, ASC) home address as his official address. 

PARK stated the report also indicated tha~ King was continually delinquent on paying his 
account. 

PARK stated that Pam Scaleo advised him that she was going to counsel King on the 
issues related to his government credit card. 

PARK stated that he discussed the matter with Melvin Shibuya, Branch Chief, Employee 
Relations, Forest Service. 

PARK stated that Shibuya apparently discussed the matter with Carmical and she advised 
that Park was out of line for taking the matter to Employee Relations. 

PARK stated that Shibuya just wanted to do the right thing so Shibuya reported the 
matter up the chain of command in Human Capital Management. 



• 
PARK stated that Donna Cannical and Michael Clonts stated PARK should have advised 
them of the matter prior to taking it to Shibuya. 

PARK stated that Cannical created a very hostile work environment. 

PARK stated that the misuse of the government credit card was made after King changed 
his official duty station from Washington, D.C. to Albuquerque, New Mexico, and his 
Transfer of Station temporary quarters had ended. 

PARK stated the report indicated that King's name had appeared on the Bank of America 
(BOA) delinquency list several times. 



MEMORANDUM OF INTERVIEW 

Name: Melvin Shibuya 

Address: 

Phone: ' 

Case Number: HY-0801-0094 

Date: June 8, 2009 

SACs): SA Marites del Carmen 
SA Harold Stanford 

On Monday, June 8,2009, Special Agent (SA) Marites del Cannen and Special Agent (SA) 
Harold Stanford interviewed Melvin Shibuya (SHIBUY A) at the Marriott Pyramid North, 5151 
San Francisco Road, NE, Albuquerque, in reference to an on-going investigation of subject, 
JESSE KING. Shibuya is the Branch Chief, Employee Relations Division, Forest Service, 
Albuquerque Service Center, Albuquerque, New Mexico. SHIBUY A was advised the Office of 
Special Counsel received allegations regarding JESSE KING and referred the allegations to the 
Secretary of Agriculture, who in turn delegated the authority to the Office ofInspector General 
to conduct an investigation. 

According to SHIBUY A: 

SHIBUY A currently resides at 
provided the following contact telephone numbe 

SHIBUY A is the Chief, Employee Relations Division (GS-14), Forest Service (FS), 
Albuquerque, New Mexico. 

SHIBUY A stated that he was assigned to the Albuquerque Service Center (ASC) since 
January or March 2006. 

SHIBUY A stated that he has been employed with USDA for about 12 years. 

Shibuya stated prior to that he was employed by the Office of the Comptroller of 
Currency. 

SHIBUY A stated he was first infonned about the list sometime in 2006. 

SHIBUY A stated that multiple FS employees were on the list including Jesse King. 

SHIBUYA stated Kathy Burgers, Director of Human Resources (retired), wanted to 
report King and others, to the agency. 

SHIBUYA stated Park became aware of King's credit card misuse in December 2007. 
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SHlBUY A stated in December 2008, he was infonned by Roy Roosevelt, Assistant 
Director for Customer Relations, that SHIBUY A should not return to the office because 
he was under investigation for destroying government property. . 

[n reference to his current complaint with the Office of Special Counsel (OSC), SHIBUY A 
advised the following: , 

SH[BUYA stated that he reported issues related to Jesse King and issues of retaliation to 
OSC in April or May 2008. 
SHIBUYA stated OSC advised him they were not acting on the retaliation acts against 
him and the rational was since he was under investigation it was safer to remove him out 
of the· position.· ........ ---- .. -.---" .. --." ". 
SHIBUY A stated the investigation on him was based on the fact he recommended the 
removal of an employee for giving out an unapproved grant in mid 2007. 
SHlBUY J:. stated that Employee Relations lost the case because the Douglas factors were 
ignored. 
SHIBUY A stated he is being accused of destroying government documents because he 
recommended the destruction of the 1st draft of recommendations against the employee. 
SHIBUY A stated that the employee passed away and his wife continued the case against 
the Forest Service. 
SHIBUY A stated that in May 2008, he reported the Jesse King issues to OSC and in 
December 2008, he was accused of destruction of government property. 

In reference to Jesse King and the government credit card issue SHlBUY A advised the 
following: 

SHlBUY A stated he knew that King's residence was in Houston, Texas, but he was using 
Tammy Hanan's (fonner Director, ASC) home address as his official address. 

SHlBUY A advised that King utilized the government credit card to rent a car in 
Albuquerque, New Mexico, his official Duty Station, and in Houston, Texas,. for other 
purchases. 

SHIBUY A stated that King changed his official duty station from Washington, D.C., to 
Albuquerque, New Mexico, about December 2007. 

SHIBUY A stated the report also indicated that King was continually delinquent on 
paying his government credit card account. 

SHIBUY A stated he infonned Kathy Burger's, former HR Director, Forest Service, of 
the information provided by Jeff Park. 

SHlBUY A stated that Ron Banergas, Acting Director, HR, Forest Service, advised that 
SHIBUY A should report the misuse of the government credit card by King. 

il EXHIBIT_....L7 __ 
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SHlBUY A stated that the misuse of the government credit card was made after King 
changed his official duty station from Washington, D.C., to Albuquerque, New Mexico, 
and his Transfer of Station temporary quarters had ended. 

SHlBUY A stated the report indicated that King's name had appeared on the Bank of 
America (BOA) delinquency list several times. 
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MEMORANDUM OF INTERVIEW 

Name: Pam Scaleo 

Address: USDA Forest Service 
101B Sun Avenue 
Albuquerque, NM 

Phone: 

Case Number: HY-0801-0094 

Date: June 09, 2009 

SACs): SA Marites del Carmen 
SA Harold Stanford 

On Tuesday, June 09,2009, at approximately 10:47 a.m., Special Agent (SA) Marites del 
Carmen and Special Agent (SA) Harold Stanford interviewed DEBBIE BALDANADO at the 
USDA Forest Service, 101B Sun Ave. Albuquerque, New Mexico, in regards to an on-going 
investigation of subject, JESSE KING. BALDANADO is a Financial Analyst for the USDA 
Forest Service located in Albuquerque, New Mexico. 

According to SCALCO: 

SCALCO currently resides at 

SCALCO is currently the Travel Branch Chief (GS-14), USDA Forest Service, 
Albuquerque Service Center since October 2006, and has been with the Department for 
21 years. 

SCALCO stated that she oversees the Travel Operations Branch to include transfers of 
duty stations and temporary duty assignments. 

SCALCO stated that Peter Gilmour, Assistant Director for Claims and Travel, is her first 
line supervisor and Michael Clonts, Acting Director, ASC, is her second line supervisor. 

In reference to Jesse King and the travel card issues, SCALCO advised the following: 

SCALCO advised that she first became aware of King's delinquencies in the Fall 0[2007, 
when King's information appeared on the Data Mining Report for the Department. 

Elena Delgado first discovered the issues relating to Jesse King's account and discussed it 
with SCALCo. 

SCALCO approached King about the issues related to his government travel card and he 
advised that it was part of his Transfer of Station and he was still in temporary quarters. 

SCALCO felt that was a sufficient response and therefore, it was no longer an issue. 
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SCALCO advised in March 2008, she received additional information on King and his 
issues with his government credit card. 

KING's address on his government travel card is in Albuquerque, New Mexico. 

SCALCO stated that the Forest Service would receive 60 day delinquency reports 
electronically. 

SCALCO stated she does not recall KING being on the 60 day delinquent report. 

SCALCO stated she discussed the issues relating to KING's credit card with DONNA 
CARMICAL (CARMICAL). 

SCALCO stated CARMICAL advised that she wanted to see the Data Mining Reports on 
all SES employees. 

SCALCO does not know what CARMICAL did with the Data Mining Report on all the 
SES employees. 

SCALCO stated that other SES employees have been delinquent on credit card accounts 
and some have been suspended. 

SCALCO stated KING has an outstanding balance on his US Bank account of 
approximately $2,858.00 from January to February 2009. 

SCALCO stated that she has sent two notices on the outstanding balance to US Bank. 

SCALCO stated the ADl39 states that government credit card balances must be cleared 
prior to separation from the agency. 

SCALCO stated she has seen the balance left in limbo after the ADl39 is completed. 

SCALCO stated that she went on sick leave starting April 18, 2008, and returned the 
second week of May. 

SCALCO stated during her absence, Jeff Park was the acting Assistant Director and 
SCALCO provided Park a blue envelope which contained the information on KING's 
possible misuse of his government credit card. 

SACLCO stated that PARK was very upset by KING's possible misuse of the card. 

SCALCO stated that PARK advised that he was going to look into or take care of it while 
she was on leave. 

SCALCO stated she never discussed the information contained in the blue envelope with 
KING. 
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SCALCO stated that in 2008, Donna Carmical advised her that OIG or the Department 
was involved with the KING issue. 

SCALCO stated that she spoke with a Misconduct Investigator from Headquarters, 
sometime during 2008. 

SCALCO advised that her staff would review the data mining reports and travel 
transactions. 

Since 2006, travel card issues are reported to HCM (was this new policy put in writing, if 
so request a copy) 

SCALCO provided the following information about KING's relocation to ASC: 

The Official Travel Authorization covers the period of June I, 2007 through 
September 4,2009 for KfNO's Transfer to Station (TOS). 

Since KING's TOS to ASC, he did not spend a lot of time in Albuquerque, New Mexico. 

SCALCO stated that KINO spent about 1 week a month at the ASC, prior to moving to 
Albuquerque and about the same after the relocation. 

SCALCO stated that the CFO position could require a lot of travel. 

KfNO's official residence is in Houston, Texas, and his official duty station is in 
Albuquerque, New Mexico. 

When KING is in Albuquerque, New Mexico, he stays with Tammy Hanan, former ASC 
Director. 

~ 
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United Stales 
Dq):trtllleni of 

Dear Jesse: 

Forest 
SCr\'ice 

A1hlltllH?rtPI(' Service Center 
e 

JO I B Sun A I'cnue NE 
AlbIH-Ilu.'l"que, NM S7109 

File Code: 6540-8 
Date; April 22, 2009 

We are reviewing our transfer of station files to determine if monies can be made available for 
other Forest Service priorit ies. During our review of your transfer of station to Albuquerque and 
your separation travel we have discovered a few outstanding items: 

I. You have not filed a Relocation Income Tax (RIT) claim for calendar year 2007 for your 
transfer to Albuquerque, NM. In March 2009, the National Finance Center (NFC) 
collected $ J ,324.64 from you for the 2007 RIT. You may still file a 2007 RIT claim in 
which the NFC will determine if monies should be refunded. 

2. We have not received paperwork from you for your separation travel reimbursement in 
February of this year. In order to process a travel voucher, please submit your lodging 
receipts; a written travel itinerary, detailing the daily mileage driven; and any to/ls for 
your travel from Albuquerque to your residence in Texas. We will prepare a voucher and 
forward to you for signature. 

3. We are accepting the 2008 RIT claims now. for processing by the NFC. 

I have attached the 2007 and 2008 RlT claim forms to this letter for you to complete and return 
to the Travel Branch for processing. Instructions and information regarding RIT is also included. 

I recently learned that you have a credit balance of $1 33.39 on your old Bank of America travel 
card and have requested the Travel Branch to contact the Bank and request a ch&k be issued to 
you at your Houston address. You should receive this check shortly. 

If you have any questions regarding your RIT claims, separation travel, or your Bank of 
American refund, please contact me or Pam Scaleo, Travel Branch Chief. Pam can be reached 
on 505-563-7' 64. 

Sincerely, 

/s/ DOllna Carmical, 
DONNA CARMICAL 
Director Budget and Finance 
Albuquerque Service Center 

cc: Pamela C Scaleo 

Caring for the Land and Serving People 
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United States 
Oepartment of 
AgricuUu re 

Dear Jesse : 

forest 
SCi'vice 

Albuquerque Service Center 101 B SUII Avenue NE 
Albuquerquc, NM 87109 

File Code: 6540-8 
oa4JVN 0 1 2009 

We are asking your assistance to complete paperwork on a couple of items related to your FY 2007 
TOS from Washington, DC to Albuquerque, your separation travel in February and travel bank card 
issues. We feel that you probably have monies due from your FY 2007 TOS and of course from 
your separation travel and would like to help you get these resolved as soon as possible. I have 
outlined the infonnation we need below. 

FY2007 TOS 

• 2007 RIT - In March 2009, the National Finance Center (NFC) collected $1,324.64 from 
you for the 2007 RIT because you did not file a 2007 RIT claim. You may still file a 2007 
RIT claim in which the NFC \ViII detennine if monies should be refunded, it is highly likely 
that you have a refund due. 

• 2008 RIT - We are accepting the 2008 RIT claims now for processing by the NFC. If you 
were reimbursed transfer of station expenses in 2008, you must file a RIT claim for that 
period. Failure lofile a RIT claim will result in a bill/rom tlte NFC. Claim forms were 
included in our letter of April 22, 2009. If you did not receive these forms or need us to 
send them to you again, please let us know. 

SEPARATION TRA VEL 

• You are entitled to reimbursement for your separation travel reimbursement in February of 
this year. In order to process a travel voucher, please submit your lodging receipts; a written 
travel itinerary, detailing the daily mileage driven; and any tolls for your travel from 
Albuquerque to your residence in Texas. We will prepare a voucher and forward to you for 
signature. 

GOVERNMENT TRA VEL CARDS 

• Bank of America - With regard to your government travel card accounts, we requested that 
the Bank of America issue you a check for the credit balance on your old government travel 
card. You should have received this check by now. 

• US Bank Card - The new US Bank travel card, issued to you in November, is now 90 days 
past due in the amount of $2,858.26. Our records show you received reimbursement for 
these travel expenses. Payment for this amount is due and should be sent to US Bank, at 
U.S. Bank Government Services; P.O. Box 790428; St. Louis, MO 63179-0428. Please 
include your account number with your payment. 7 

EXHIBIT __ ~-
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If you have any questions regarding your RIT claims, separation travel, or your Bank of American 
refund, please feel free to contact me at 505-563-7103 or on my cell at 505-366-1270. You may 
also contact Pam Scalco on 505-563-7164 and she will be more than happy to assist you in 
completing paperwork necessary to resolve these issues. 

Hope that you and your family are doing well. Please know that you are in our thoughts. Take 
care. 

Sincerely, 

DONNA M. CARMICAL 
Director, Budget & Finance 
Albuquerque Service Center 

cc: Michael Clonts, Pamela C Scaleo, Peter Gilmour 

EXHIBfT_7_--::-_ 
PAGE d-. OF 2... 



" . 

.. ~' HR FSWeb - Benefi.etirement - AD-139 Page lof2 

Routing Slip AD-139 
WO Final Salary Payment Report 

118EPARATIONDATE: ; ~ ._: = 

IIS8#: . 

iISTAFF
: 

/," .. - -
c.' ;-c> 

By your lJill working day have each person/staff listed below sign and date this fonn_ You need the 
signature or e-mail notification even if the item does not apply to you_ Retirees: your lump sum 
payment for armualleave will not be processed until this form is completed and returned to your contact 
the Albuquerque Service Center. Employees who are separating - return to ASCIHCM Benefits MS-III. 

l:a~ld Sign IIWhY 1 SignaturelDate 

Tum in Staff Property: Private 
Your Staffs Accountable ~~~ Office Keys & desk keys, Beepers, 
Property Officer ~ rol 09 Laptops, Ceil Phones 

Send e-mail to: asc boa; Subject: 'Ann: Travel Explain that you are leaving 
Attach copy of e-' Card Coordinator'; In the message area, type (retiring, quiting, etc.)and the date. 
mail confirmation your narne and last 8 digits of travel card Wait for confirmation and then 

number destroy card. fromASC 

Supply Cards, Rosslyn Key Fobs, 
. ;:L.' 

Sarah Resnicov; 1st Yates SW; 205-0801 -Y/ J- "1:'3.-;£ ~I..' 
Gov'i !D, Metro Checks and ii' - 1-.- ~~ (Alternative is Kim Gibson 260-7399 for keys, 
Transit Program cancellatlon and lsi ~}()s-t::;';:;::· , ~' 

fobs, etc. link to site with Form AD-I 147 c-U!X"4,....-""'·-r'-

Cancel MCI Calling Card and/or 
Attach a copy of ~L Log onto this website. select Federal Call1ing home modem line and Notify 

Card Request Form and follow instructions. ONLY that you have turned in a email and EUSC!-u; "'~..,<!... 
fkf..IJ II/A 

L 
, cellular phone to your staff Ie C. It /"/ It 

'SandY Farber 1 Official Passport needs to be Attach copy of e-
,email: sfarber@fs.fed.us cancelled mail 

i~J. ;',.; :..,~~._ ... ,.L.,,- rx.:.... 'l'or SES and STs oniy: 
.. -

Mike Edwards' .;, i tl'ic (:j Final Publi~ Confidential Attach copy of e-
email: Mike.Edwards@usda.gov . riA 

Disclosure Report: 8F-278 mail . ,..r.-. L-

INicole Scott; RPE 7th Floor, AQM 
, 

IIOovernment Purchase Credit Card I\lsi IV / f1 .-1..44"<-
Security Clearance. NOTE: If you /I,/;r- ~L:. 

Immanuel West email: iwest@fs.fed.us have a clearance -- contact USDA's Attach copy of ell)'_ 
Security Office to be debriefed. 

HCM will do after you tum in this form: 

IWho Should Sign IIWhy 'ISignature and Date 1 

HCM E-mail lRM Information Security 
representative for (infosec@fs.fed.us) that employee has 

hnp:llfsweb.hcm.fs.fed. uslbenefitslret-csrs/ad 139.html 211 0/2009 
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IIRM security I 
separated so IRM will remove their access 

! to information systems and networks 

Last Updated 2/28/07 
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MEMORANDUM OF INTERVIEW 

Name: Tim Decoster Casc Number: HY-0801-0094 

Address: USDA - OIG Date: July 9, 2009 

Phone: SACs): Harold Stanford and Francis Riddick 

On Thursday, July 9, 2009, Senior Special Agents (SSA) Harold Stanford and Francis Riddick 
interviewed Tim Decoster (DECOSTER) at Office of the Chief, Forest Service Headquarters, 
Yates Building, Washington, D.C., in regards to an on-going investigation of subject, JESSE 
KING, fonner Chief Financial Officer, Forest Service. 

Interview statements from DECOSTER: 

DECOSTER currently resides at 
He is currently the Chief of Staff to the Chief of the Forest Service and has held that 
position for about 2 years. 
He has been with USDA for about 14 years. 
As Chief of State he did review and approve travel vouchers for KING 
He stated that he had concerns about the appropriateness and accuracy of some of the 
travel vouchers that were submitted by KING. Specifically he noticed disruption in 
KING's travel between Albuquerque, New Mexico and Washington, D.C. 
KING would make stops or have long layovers in Dallas or Houston, Texas, and he 
stated that KING had a home in one of those cities. 
He stated that he or the Chief of the Forest Service should have approved any deviation in 
travel prior the trip. 

In reference to Jesse King and the travel card issues, DECOSTER stated the following: 

He stated that HANK KASHDAN, Associate Chief, Forest Service, discussed the KING 
travel card issue with him. 
KASHDAN advised him that KING was using the travel card in Albuquerque, New 
Mexico, which is KING's official duty station. 
He stated that he mentioned the government credit card issues to KIMBELL and 
KASHDAN. 

In reference to Jesse King's request for Transfer of Station (TOS), DECOSTER stated the 
following: 

DECOSTER stated that he was not involved in KING's request to move from 
Washington, D.C. to Albuquerque, New Mexico. 
He did not review any paperwork associated with KING's Transfer to Station. 
The approving official on KING's TOS would have been the Chief of the Forest Service. 
He stated that ultimately the Chief of the Forest Service approved the TOS for KING. 

EXHIBIT-----'? __ 
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In reference to the Adverse Action against KING, DECOSTER stated the following: 

He stated that he was not aware of the proposed adverse action against KING until it was 
almost through the process and he did not review any of the letters or documents related 
to the proposed adverse action against KING. 
DECOSTER advised that KIMBELL or KASHDAN may have reviewed the documents 
related to the adverse action. 

" . . '. -, .. ".' 
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MEMORANDUM OF INTERVIEW 

Name: Donna Carmical Case Number: HY-0801-0094 

Address: USDA - ore 
Forest Service Headquarter 
Office of the Chief 
Yates Building 
Washington, DC 

July 10,2009 

Phone: "" ------:-- SACs):-HaroldStanford-and Francis Riddick 

On Wednesday, July 10, 2009, Special Agent (SSAs) Harold Stanford and Francis Riddick 
interviewed Donna Carmical (CARMICAL) at the Forest Service Headquarters, Yates Building, 
Washington, DC in regards to an on-going investigation of subject, JESSE KING. 

Interview statements from CARMICAL: 

CARMICAL stated that she was promoted to the Chief Financial Officer, Forest Service, 
on July 5,2009, and was acting CFO since March 2009. 
Prior to being promoted she was the Director, ASC, Albuquerque, New Mexico, from 
March 2007 until about March 2009, when she started acting as CFO. 
She recently relocated to the Washington, D.C. area and is temporary living with family 
at 
She stated In AprIl :LUUIS, she first became aware of the issues with KING being past due 
on his government issued credit card. ' 
She was informed of the charges were personal and made for food and meal while KING 
was in Albuquerque, New Mexico, which was his official duty station. 
She stated that PARK discussed the issue with SHIBUY A who elevated it up his chain of 
command 
She stated that he was interviewed in around May 2008, by a Misconduct Investigator in 
the Department regarding issue with KING. 

In reference to Jesse King and the travel card issues, KASHDAN stated the following: 

She stated around April 2008, Michael Clonts, Deputy Director, ASC, Albuquerque, New 
Mexico, advised her of the allegations of possible misuse of the government credit card 
to include delinquent payments on the account by KING. 
She stated during the time ,this issue was on-going, there was no policy in place for 
reporting abuse of government credit cards involving the SES employees. 
She stated that there is a current policy that government credit card use including 
delinquent payments, will be reported to KASHDAN. 
She also advised that KASHDAN now reviews the Data Mining Report on government 
credit cards. 
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• 
She stated that Jeff Park decided to take the issue directly to Melvin Shibuya, Chief, 
Employee Relations, Forest Service, and did the discuss it with his chain of command. 

In reference to KINO's request for Transfer of Station (TOS), KASHDAN stated the following: 

She did know that KINO's official residence was in Houston, Texas. 
He was not involved in the KINO's TOS directly but knows that it was processed through 
ASC. 
She stated that KIMBELL ultimately made the decision and was the approving official 
for KING moving from Washington, D.C. to Albuquerque, New Mexico . 

. ·--·In-reference·to·the Adverse Action against.JesseKing·,-KIMBELL-stated-the following: 

She was not involved in any aspects of the adverse action taken against KINO. 

EXHIBIT /0 
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MEMORANDUM OF INTERVIEW 

Name: 

Address: 

Phone: 

Hank Kashdan 

USDA- OIG 
5601 Sunnyside Avenue 
Suite 2-2230 
Beltsville, MD 20705 

Case Number: HY-0801-0094 

July 9, 2009 

SSAs: Harold Stanford and Francis Riddick 

On Wednesday, July 29,2009, Senior Special Agent (SSAs) Harold Stanford and Francis 
Riddick interviewed Hank Kashdan (KASHDAN) at the Office of the Chief, Forest Service, 
Yates Building, USDA, Washington, D.C., in regards to an on-going investigation of subject, 
JESSE KING. 

Interview statements from KASHDAN: 

KASHDAN currently resides at 
KASHDAN has been employed with the Forest Service for about 36 years. 
He was promoted to the Associate Chief on January 5, 2009, prior to that he was the 
Deputy Chieffor Business Operations and reported directly to the Chief in both positions. 

In reference to KING's and the travel card issues, KASHDAN stated the following: 

KING's travel vouchers were reviewed and approved by DECOSTER or KIMBELL. 
He was aware of the possible misuse of the credit card by KING. 
He stated that CARMICAL first discussed the issues with KING's possible misuse of the 
government travel card with him. 
KASHDAN stated CARMICAL mentioned the issue to him and stopped by KASHDAN 
residence over a weekend and showed him one of KING's travel vouchers and wanted to 
get advice from him. 
He stated that Carmical specifically mentioned King maintaining high balance and 
delinquent on paying on the account. 
KASHDAN stated he noticed a few issues with the travel voucher one was that KING did 
not complete a USDA FS Form 6500-6, Constructive Travel Using Common Carrier Cost 
Comparative Statement. 
He requested that once CARMICAL returned to Albuquerque, New Mexico, the 
following week that she send him all KING's travel vouchers since he transferred to 
Albuquerque, New Mexico. 
He reconstructed KING's travel and noticed that KING would take flights from New 
Mexico to Houston, Texas. 
Based on his analysis, he immediately contacted KATHLEEN BURGERS, former 
Director, Human Capital Management, Forest Service, and advised her of the matter and 
requested that she contact the appropriate official in the Department to report this matter. 

EXHIBIT / I 
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BURGERS did refer the matter tD the Department. He instructed BURGERS to advise 
SHlBUY A that the KING matter had been referred to the Department to handle. 
He instructed BURGERS to advise SHIBUY A that the KING matter had been referred to 
the Department to handle. 
He stated that he was interviewed in arDund May 2008, by a Misconduct InvestigatDr in 
the Department regarding issue with KING. 

In reference tD Jesse King's request for Transfer DfStation (TOS), KASHDAN stated the 
follDwing: 

He did know that KING's official residence was in Houston, Texas. 
He was not involved in the KING's TOS and stated that KIMBELL ultimately made the 
decisiDn and was the approving official for KING moving from Washington, D.C., to 
Albuquerque, New Mexico. 

In reference to the Adverse Action against Jesse King, KIMBELL stated the following: 

KASHDAN stated KIMBELL did have him review the draft Report Df Investigation from 
OHeM. 
He was not involved in preparing the disciplinary action against KING. Although, he 
stated that the KIMBELL did shDw him the "Proposal for Removal Letter" only for 
information and did not request input from him. 
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Forest Service FS-6500-6 (6/91) 

COST COMPARATIVE STATEMENT 
(Ref. FSH 6509_33, Sec. 1-2.5b) 

,A. COSTS OF TRAVEL BY COMMON CARRIER: 
DIrect Travel 

1a. Common Carrier fares: 

1 b. 0 Check here if Indirecl fare (Column II) is a penally fare rate. 

2a. Taxi and/or limousine fares lo/from lerminal; or 

2b. POV mileage in lieu of taxi to 

and from terminal: miles @ cents $ 

2c. Rental Car fees lor 1 days $ 

3. Per diem/actual subsistence claim for 

a. days @ $ __ a day + $ __ lodging 

b. days @ $ __ a day + $ __ lodging $ 

4. Excess baggage costs: $ 

5. Total Costs (1 + 2a or 2b & 2c + 3 + 4) $ 716.30 

Traveler may claim the lesser of A.S.I Direct Travel or A.S.Jllndirect Travel. 
B. SCHEDULES USED TO DE;TERMINE TOTALS SHOWN IN SECTION A 

Direct Travel 
Travel occurred October 24 through October 27_ 

Date Time 

1. Leave home/office for CC terminal I ----
2. CC scheduled departure from official station 

3. CC scheduled arrival at officiaf station 

4. Arrive residence or office 

C. EXCESS TRAVEL TIME DURING WORKING HOURS AND/OR ANNUAL LEAVE TAKEN: 

Annual Leave 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

I I 

Date From To No. Hours Date From To 
(Clock Hours) 

No. Hours 
(Clock Hours) 

T&A Clerk Inilials 

11 
IndIrect Travel 

Indirect Travel 

Date Time 
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Name: 

Address: 

Phone: 

MEMORANDUM OF INTERVIEW 

Abigail Kimbell 

USDA -OIG 
5601 Sunnyside Avenue 
Suite 2-2230 
Beltsville, MD 20705 

(202) 821-870$ 

Case Number: HY-0801-0094 

Date: July 29, 2009 

SSA Harold Stanford 
IPC Vivian Warner 

On Wednesday, July 29,2009, Senior Special Agent (SSA) Harold Stanford and Investigative 
Program Coordinator, (IPC) Vivian Warner, conducted a telephone interview with Abigail 
Kimbell (KIMBELL) from the office of Office of Inspector General, USDA, Northeast Region, 
Beltsville, Maryland, in regards to an on-going investigation of subject, JESSE KlNG. 
KIMBELL is currently the Director, Research Development, for the USDA Forest Service. 

Interview statements from KIMBELL: 

KIMBELL currently resides at 
Government Issued Cell #: (202) 821-8708. 

KIMBELL will be retiring from the USDA Forest Service effective Monday, 
August 1. 2009. Her future residence address. is: 

KIMBELL is currently the Director of Research Development for the USDA Forest 
Service, Office of the Chief. KIMBELL has held this position since July 5, 2009. Prior 
to this position, KIMBELL was the Chief of the USDA Forest Service and was the direct 
supervisor for Mr. King. KIMBELL has worked with the Department for 35 years. 

In reference to Jesse King and the travel card issues, KIMBELL stated the following: 

KIMBELL stated that the Chief of Staff reviewed and approved travel vouchers for Jesse 
King. KIMBELL did not recall ever reviewing or approving King's travel vouchers but 
indicated that she may have. In the absence of the Chief of Staff, there was no one who 
acted in this capacity. The review and approval would wait for the Chief of Staff to 
return. The Chief of Staff was the final approving official for King's travel voucher. 
Once the travel voucher was reviewed and approved by the Chief of Staff, it would go 
directly to NFC for processing. 

KIMBELL stated that she first became aware of King's travel voucher discrepancies 
upon notice of an investigation being conducted by OHCM. At that time she received a 
travel card report that is run by the Department indicating employees travel card usage, 
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payments and delinquencies. KIMBELL stated this report is run regularly by the 
Department but would go directly to Albuquerque Service Center for handling. 

KIMBELL stated that once she was made aware of the investigation and King's travel 
card delinquency, she immediately contacted him. KIMBELL stated that King was in 
Washington, D.C., for a leadership conference so she was able to speak with him in 
person regarding this matter. KIMBELL stated that she informed King to take care of 
this matter before he left Washington, D.C. 

KIMBELL also stated that at this time she had only received preliminary information 
regarding the investigation by OHCM, she had not yet received a copy of the final report. 
OHCM was waiting to finalize the report/investigation once King provided his written 
statement. 

KIMBELL indicated that prior·to this investigation; Hank Kashden had not bought the 
travel card issues regarding King to her attention. 

In reference to Jesse King's request for Transfer of Station (TOS), KIMBELL stated the 
following: 

KIMBELL stated she approved the CFO position (TOS) for King to move from 
Washington, nc. to Albuquerque, New Mexico. KIMBELL stated that she did not review 
any paperwork regarding this move. KIMBELL stated that the onl y paperwork she 
reviewed/approved was an application for travel authorization. There was no other 
paperwork associated with this TOS. KIMBELL stated that this TOS was discussed with 
J. Michael Kelly and Chuck. KIMBELL stated that she received approval for this TOS from 
both J. Michael Kelly and Chuck. 

In reference to the Adverse Action against Jesse King, KIMBELL stated.the following: 

KIMBELL stated she reviewed the Report of Investigation from OHCM. KIMBELL stated 
that she was directly involved in the process for the proposed removal of King. KIMBELL 
stated that she did not directly speak with J. Michael Kelly regarding this adverse action. 
KIMBELL stated that J. Michael Kelly discussed this decision with Hank Kashden, she did 
not. KIMBELL stated she had sent an e-mail to arrange a meeting but never received a 
response. KIMBELL stated that she reviewed the decision letter/proposed removal prepared 
by OHCM's Leslie Violet for King. KIMBELL stated that she did not like the tone of the 
letter and made changes to it and it was returned to Leslie Violet. 

KIMBELL stated she discussed this adverse action/matter with the Under Secretary. 

KIMBELL stated Leslie Violet continued to work on the Decision LetterlProposed Removal 
of King after her changes/comments regarding the tone. During this time King decided to 
take an optional retirement so the Decision Letter/Proposed Removal became mute. 
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• • 
KIMBELL stated King decided to retire with the retirement being effective 
February 3, 2009. 

KIMBELL stated the Proposed Removal Letter was given to King sometime in December, 
was not sure of the exact date. KIMBELL did recall that due to the holiday season that was 
the reason for the delay in King receiving the letter. 

KIMBELL stated King requested a 20 day extension to respond to the Notice, which she 
approved. KIMBELL stated King did respond to the Notice. The response was given to both 
Leslie Violet and herself The response is currently in Leslie Violet's file. 

KIMBELL stated that she did not keep any e-mails, documents or files related to this matter. 

KIMBELL stated that in order to avoid a situation like this again, the routine reports run by 
the Department is directly submitted to the Office of the Chief for review. 

Telephone interview began @ 10 a.m., ended @ approximately 10:50 a.m. 

j Q, EXHrSfT_,,-__ -' __ 
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MEMORANDUM OF INTERVIEW 

Name: J. Michael Kelley 

Title: Associate General Counsel 
Office of General Counsel 
U.S. Department of Agriculture 
Washington, D.C. 

Case Number: HY-"OSOI-0094 

Date: August 3, 2009 

SSA Francis Riddick 
IPC Vivian Warner 

. _ M,.!<.eJley'~_d!,~i~~ ~n~!-,~sPQn~ibiliti.e.~ in~lude_b_u!P9.! Ijmited to. p'ro_yidjng tegal advice and 
services to the Secretary of Agriculture and to all other officials and agencies of the Department 
with respect to all USDA programs and activities. 

Mr. Kelley was questioned regarding his knowledge the proposed adverse action recommended 
against Mr. Jesse King, former Chief Financial Officer, Forest Service (FS), USDA. 

Mr. Kelley stated his knowledge/involvement with the issues surrounding Mr. King was limited. 
Sometime in February 2009, Hank Kashdan, former Deputy Chief for Business Operations, FS, 
contacted him via telephone regarding the proposed adverse action and decision letter related to 
Mr. King's termination from Government service. Mr. Kashdan informed Mr. Kelley that 
officials from the Office of Human Capital Management (OHCM) specifically Leslie Violette 
and Jill Crumpacker wanted Ms. Abigail Kimbell, former Chief, of FS to prepare a letter 
terminating Mr. King from Government service. Mr. Kelley told Mr. Kashdan he did not believe 
it was necessary to issue a proposed termination letter to Mr. King since he had retired. 

Mr. Kelley did not discuss this issue with anyone except Mr. Kashdan. The only documents or 
files relating to this issue were a couple e-mails and a letter from the Office of Special Counsel, 
requesting an investigation into the matter. 
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'02119/09 14: 50 FA! _-8 • 
FY 2008 Perfonnance Accomplishments 

Jesse L. King 
Chief Financial Officer, Forest Service 

Element 1 Le3dersbipIManagement 
Mr. King's participation in the agency's Executive Leadership Team contributed to the successful 
management of the agency through a difficult fiscal and fire season. 

Mr. King'~ leadership has sustained the agency's clean audit opinion on its Financial Statements for: 
Fiscal Year (FY) 2007 for a sixth consecutive year. His leadership will result in the seventh clean audit 
opinion on the agency's fmanci.1 statements for FY 2008. His leadership has fO$Ultet! in the agency 
successfuUy initigating the one remaining material weakness (Information Technology) by worlcirig 
jointly with th~ Chief Information Officer to downgrade the IT material weakness to a significant , 
deficiency. The agency is in full compHance, for the third year in a row, With OMB CircuJarA-l23 
Appendix A. All FYO? audit recommendations weco closed and all FY02 IT Security Findings were 
closed during this :f15CB1 year. 

The current Lean Six Sigma Trans.ction Processing (LSTP) initiative was started by the Forest Senrice 
Chl'efFinancial Officer (CFO) in Fiscal Year 2007 and is noW being leveraged by the USDA as a 
departmental solution. Mr. King led the project for the USDA OCFO and the Forest Seme.. will 'serve as 
the pilot agency. This :fIScal year, th~ initiative received approval by USDA officials for the fimclional 
requirements and resulted in !he stand up of a new project maoagement office. He led the negotiation of 
an agreement betw!'Cn the U.S. Tre~sury and USDA, to use its Internet Payment Plsifotm (JPP) as its 
vendor web portal for submission of electronic invoices and invoice status infOImatioit LSTPwas 
instrumental in the success of the USDA COOP for Hurricane Gustav, as invoices were process!'<i on the 
flrSlday of operations at the aUemative worksite, which would have been impossible without LSTP. . . . '. ,:, .. ~. 

Mr. KIDg provided the necesswy Sllpport and leade;'hip to the agency Acquisition Management Diiector 
, for the inter-Deputy Chief effort in the development of the Virtual Incident ProcUrement (YIPR) sYstem 

as a tool to facilltate nationally consistent incident pmc~ment policies and to relieve burd~s6nie ". 
requirements through automation. Internal processes for improving the C[O ITproper1y prc/lfllIit to 
improve accountability of IT property were developed and implelI!ented. InitialEd mechanisms to 'correct 
personal property inventory shortcomings ideotified in the OMB A-I23 internal Control milestoneS. 
Collahorated with ASC l:'roperly to develop rula f'uudize a Capital vs. Operating Lease Detennination' 
soor1:1s model. This bclucied eX:""sive rescsrch ofFASB No. 13 and OMB-A;Il, AppendixB,anQ 
bcl!:ded cv!lnbor.iticn with the fin;Jncial Accounting Standards Board and the Geneni.1 SCrvirits -
Administration.' ' , 

Element 2 'Mission Result. 
Thiougbout FY2oo8,Intemal Quality Assurance staffunder Mr. King's direction provided!'XceptionaJ 
advisory and assessment services. IQA saw sigoificani increases m its responsibility as it has fortJi. past 
three years since its creatioD with the Albuquerque Service Centtir. IQA strives Iii achieve three , 
fundamental strategic objectives, (1) Sopport the USDA Assessment and Assurance functi""" fur A123 
(2) PiovideFS Mf\ll8gement with advisory senrices to improve efficiency and effectiY.DCSS,ofbusfues. ' 
processes, and (3) Conduct operations so that tltird parties can rely on results. AssiSted in Iiep.irp),eilt of 
Homeland Security and Office Of Inspector General Hunicane Katrina Audit and oth": Sniall reviews. as 
weD as conducting our agency's conformance assessment with the Office of Management &: Budget 
Cin;ular A-123 Appendix A, Internal Control over Financial Reporting; Appendix B, Purchase COrd 
Management; and Appendix C. Improper Payments Improvement Act oj2002. These circulars implement 
the requin;ments of the Federal Manager's Financial Integrity Act of 1982 (FMFIA), 

Mr. Kipg continues to emphasiie performance measures to achieve or sustain levels required by the 
Office 'ofMruiagement'and Budget and the USDA OCFO. To that end, Mr. King's leadership resulted in 
a significantly decreased backlog of claims cases migrated from the field to the ASC resulting in closure 
of approximately 768 affinnative tart and trespass claims. This resulted in the coUection of $120 million 
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back to the Forest Service to support fire suppression and/or reforestation projects. Supported USDA's 
initiative for protection of PH infOlmation by having 23,000 square feet of files centralized which created 
a more secure filing process, efficiencies in filing and retrieving mes and improved use of facilities space. 
Improved OMB Scorecard metrics io FY 200S: moved IPAC into green, sustained green for entire year; 
moved Treasury 224 reporting from red to Green; improved Prompt Payment Statistics from red to green; 
improved Property Inventory measurements fi'om red to green; consistently reduced interest paid for late 
payments and maintained Green; and maintained green on EFT requirements 

In FY 2008, reduced and/or eliminated 20 open audits ave,' one year old with 137 outstanding audit 
recommendations: Under Mr. lUng's leadership, over 30 major actions involving Forest Service stafti;,­

Office of the Chief Financial Officer, Department ofrnterior, Office afInspector General (OIG), 
Government Accounting Office (GAO),_Office_o.f G.!'negl Cq~n_sel, .and other USDA agencies were 
processed. The major actions included processing Statement of Actions for the Under Secretary's---- :. 
concUrrence and the SecretaIy's signature, obtaining management decision with 01G, arid responding 
officiaily to ora and GAO audit reports and requests for data. Under his leadership the oldest audits 
from 2000 and 200 I were closed, the IT audit recommendations that represented the IT material weakness 
were closed, and 75% of the outstanding financial statement recomniendations were closed. Overall, over 
70 DIG audit recommendations were closed and six audits were submitted for closure. 

EleIIlent 3 - Civil Rights _. 

Mr. Killg continues to demonstrate his support of the agency's diversity goals by his eff9rts during the 
staffing of three program areas within U,e ForeSt Service UDder his. direct supervision; Hi: also works with 
the Civil Rights stBifto reSolve issues brought to his attention keeping the rights of employees in the 
forefront and actively seeks solutions amiable to management The Albuquerque Service Center has 
achieved a highly diverse workforce, which exceeds the Forest Service percentages in five of six 
represented groups. 

For the second year, the Forest Service met/exceeded the Small, Disadvantaged, Veterans, and Women 
Owned, Business (SDYOB) goals. Two Forest Service employees won USDA's 2008 Bmall Busmess and· 
Ability One awards. Effort continued to hire high skilled diverse employees for positions within·the 
Albuquerque Service Center, Acquisition Management, and Financial ManagemeDt staff. 

Element 4 Personal/Org.nizntion.J Emphases ' 
Mr. YJng confinues.to be a key management official in the operations of the Budget and Fina,jc~·aii.dtiic: .. 
Acquisition Management organizations both at the Albuquerque Service Center and throughout the 
ageDCY. With the agency's Chieflnfonnation Officer, provides organization emphasis to the resolution of 
theL,:~aming IT material weakness. 

Continue Improvement of Financial Management: Mr. King coordinated the activities of and 
provided counSel to the USDA Chief Financial Officer, Charles ChristopheISon and Associate CFO Jon 
Hol!ipay. in the Lean Six Sigma Transaction Processing initiative. This major improvement effort was led 
by Mr. King for the FS lind subsequently for U.S. Department of Agriculiure to eliminate paper. by the 
implementation of an electionic process to improve efficiency and effectiveness in the paymeni process. 
The project is in a developmental stage and is scheduled for implementation in the FS in FY 2009. 

Element 5 - Safety. Health. and/or Homeland Security 

Mr. King supports the agencies policies and the Chief's high priority on safety. Members of his staff are 
assigned active roles in providing information to keep the Continuity of Operations Plan updated and 
serve as emergency evacuation wardens/monitors. Safety concerns voiced by employees are dealt with 
promptly. On site safety reviews are conducted, phone trees and Occupant Emergency Plans are kept· 
current. . 
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USDA Senior Executive Service 

Performance Agreement 

Executives in ilie Department of Agriculture are accountable for supporting the Department's 
mission to provide leadership on food, agriculture, natural resources, and related issues based on 
sOWld public policy, the best available science, and efficientmanagemenl The Department's 
strategic goals are: 

• Enhance international competiti~e~";iof American agriculture 
• Enhance the competitiveness and sustainability of rural and farm economies 
• Support increased eecnomic opportuitities and improved qnality oflif. in rUral America 
• Enhance protection and safety of the nation's agriculture and food supply 
• lmprove the nation's nutrition and health 
• Protect and cohance the nation's natural resoUICe base and environment 

Appraisal Period: 
10/01/07-9130108 

Employee Name: SSN: 
JESSE 1. KING .. 
Position Title: Series and Salary: i 
Cliief Financial Officer ES·V51O-00 41/ (p~'L/.I 
O~g~tion: 
USDA Forest Service 

certifY discussion employee and receipt ofPerfor:marlce Agici:ment;"hich 

., 
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Pari I: USDA Mandatory Elements and Performance Requirements 

ELEMENT 1: Le.dersbiplManagement (critical): 

Lead organizational change, motivating managers to incorporate vision, strategic planning and 
results-driven management into full range of the organization's activities. Address programmatic 
and organizational requirements as necessary to motivate and lead organization. Desigtt and 
implement strategies to maximize employee potential in meeting organization's mission and 
goals. Acqillres and administers human, financial, Iilaterial, and infonnatioll resources in a 

-manner which instills public trust and accomplishes the organization's mission and uses new 
technology to enhance decision making. 

Provides leadership to develop and implement strategic plans for civil rights. ~force all civil 
rights laws, rules, regulations, and executive orders in leading and managing organization. 

Provide leadership iri the accomplishment of agency programs or service functions, incmporating 
the Forest Service Goals and Objectives in the Strategic Plan for FY 2004-2008 into program 
administration. Support th~ President's priorities as well as those established by the Secretary. 

/FuUy S~ccessful Performance Requirement - Element 1:1 

Human, financial and property resources were effectively managed to achieve performance goals. 
Cun:ent and future needs assessments were based on organizational goals and budget ~ties;· 
and opportunities to reduce program and administrative costs were sought. 

Management control systems were established or maintained to monitor activities, identifY 
problem areas, and initiate timely corrective action. 

Uses agenCy performance plans, corporate priorities, and other management systCOlS to ensure 
subordinate employee's performance planS are linked to outcomes and to overall organizational 
perforinance objectives. &sure that during the rating period at least on~ forma) ilis,cus~i'mi· 
o<:ciJrs for all hllbordinates, and iliat all employees are apprnise:! realisticallysg.fu.,i clear,· . 
measurable standards of performance and within established tinle frames. Data from employee· 
feedback indicates improvement in or general satisfaction with the planning, cleve1oping, 
monitoring, rating and rewarding·ofperfciriDimce. 

President's Management Agenda: Achieves results prescribed by the Secretary, Deputy 
Secretary, senior management, and oversight agencies pertaining to the President's government­

. wide ma.ru.gement initiatives intended to improve agency and organizational effectiveness and 
effectiveness and efficiency in assigned program areas. Establish appropriate strategic plans, . 
including goals and implementation activities necessary to effeCt program changes tilrgeied at 
achieving desired results. Ensmes goals and activities are reflected in performance plans of 
·subo!dinate managers and are cascaded throughout their organization. S';bmit quality progress 
reports ana work prOducts to superiors, including the Departmental officials as required. 
Effectively manages resources toward the attainment of the program initiative goals and meets 
prescribed objectives and goals imposed by regulatory/oversight agencies (e.g. OMB, OPM), the 

.. Department, or agency. . 
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Employee perfollDance plans are aligned with organizational goals.and focus on results achieved. 
Data from employee feedback indicates improvement in or general satisfaction with the planning, 
developing, monitoring, rating and rewarding of perfonnance. 

Agency Civil Rigbts Plan and Strategic Plan were implemented timely. All applicable goals and 
objectives related to accountability, program delivery, outreach, workforce diversity, eniployment 
praCtices, resources and structure, perfonnancc, procurement activities, and communications were 
met in accordance with Department and agency policY. . 

A results-<lriented annual perfo~ance plan thatlnciUdedPeTfomance measures consistent with 
GPRA requirements was implemented. Program goals ,,!ere accomplished within specified 
timeframes. Interests were balanced and priorities were adjusted in response to changing 
demands. Customer feedback was analyzed and needs/concerns identified 

ALIGNMENT: 

USDA Strategic Plan Goal 6 - Protect and Enhance the Nation's Natural Resource Base and 
Environment 
Objective 6.1 - Protect Watershed Health to Ensure Clean and Abundant Water 
Objective 6.3 - Protect Forests and Gmsslands ., ,. 
Objective 6.4 - Protect and Enhance Wildlife Habitat to Benefit Desired, At-Risk and Declining 
Species . 
Forest Service Business Operations Strategic Plan Goal 1: Streamline SyStems and Processes 
Jri:tprove the efficiencY and effectiveness of sen.;ce delivery internally and eXtemaJiy. . 
Forest Servlce Business Operations Strategic Plan Goal 2: Enhance worl::force mil'ni!gCmOnt 
Enhance the workforce to reflect diversity, appropriate skill mix, and a high cite of retention, all 
of which helps the agency become an employer of choice. . 
Forest Service Business Operations Strategic Plan Goal 3: Exceed cllSfomer expectation in . 
providing \>usiness services and products. 

Objective l.41mplcment rcengincered structure that wlll facilitate the effective, efficient and 
ecbnomic delivery of business operations servic~s. 

performance Measures/Action Strategies: 

Iill 006 

Continuous Improvement of the centralized Budget & F.inancial Management Organization:..J..../ F y 019 
• Implement LSJP Phase IT by June FYOS for Forest Service and USDA. ~ ~ 1<J ~. 
• . Meet performance measures and expected outcomes as described in the Service Level . 

Agreements between the ASC and the Customer Service OperatiOlisBoaro. 
• Lead the development and publication of the Performance AccountaliilitY report for the 

agency for an on time delivery as outlined in the President's Management Agenda. 

Forest Service Business Operations Strategic Plan Goal 2: 
Objective 2. I - Make decisions about workforce management (ie., recruitment, retention, and 
diversity) that reflect the strategies of the Worlcforce Management Plan. 
Objective 2.3 - Develop the leadership and supervision skills of current and future managers. 

Performance Measures! Action Strategies: 
, o. Annual external hiring and Student Car= Experience Program conversions reflect 

Workforce Plan goals 80 percent of the time. ~ 

3 
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• Ten percent of all supervisors and managers complete performance or developmental 

training aJllIually.. (;'':Y 
Forest Service Business Operations Strategic Plan Goal 3: 
Objective 3.1 • SatisfY customers (internal and external), not only the first time but every time. 

Performance Measures/Action Strategies: 
• Procurement preference accomplishments meet or exceed USDA specified goals. U>,~ 
• End User support c~tcr satisfaction rating exceeds 80 percent . 0 
• Service Level Agreements are met 

Rating: 
o Exce~ds Fully Successful 
o Me.ets Fully Successful 
o Does Not Meet Fully Successful 
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ELEMENT 2: Mission Results (Critical) 

Demonstrates support for business strategic goals and initiatives within own organization and 
contributes to the achievement of overall USDA initiatives. Stresses accountability and 
continuous improvement to managers, makes timely and effective decisions, and produces results 
through strat~gic planning and the implementation and evaluation of programs and policies. 

Ensure a high degree of responsiveness to oIganizationalleadersbip, the public, and internal and 
external customers .. Continually reviews, monitors, and strives to improve organizational 
performance io achieve USDA rms-Sioiuesults:··· .... -_ ........ ---. -.. ... . 

Enforces all civil rights laws, rules, regulations, and executive o~ders in accomplishing the 
agency's mission 

/FUlly Successful Performance Requirement..; Element 2:1 

Addresses ideuti.fied business priorities through activities that produced measurable resuits. l"ew 
insights and innovative solutions were developed, where needed, wbJch resulted in progress to 
resolve difficult issues, imProve management or capitalize on emerging opportunities. 

Recommendations and contributions were generally accepted because they werCbaseilon'aod 
demonstrated sound judgment, cost effectiveness, and sensitivity to i1)e effecis on ov.;;.n policy, 
and were supported by sound analysis !"1d rationale: . 

The mission area and agency's mission, core values, strategic goals and priq~ties we;re. ,~ff~vely 
communicated to employees, customers and other critical stakeholders who were mvolved ihihe 
developmeni of objectives to accomplish those ¥o:ils. '. '. .. 

Administration and Department policies were stipported and promoted in an affirmative manner. 
Policy issues were analyzed and strategic plans were developed from a long-teri;, perspective.· 
Simteliies were developed and imPlemented that were consistent with the economic:md political 
climate arid lIgency goals. 

Superiors were WOODed of sensitive and controversial emerging issues.as well as problems and 
challenges that arose in the implementation and administration of Department programs. '. 

Customer needs and expectations are identified arid are considered when making declsi~ns, . 
identiJYing solutions, and resolving conflicts. Internal and external customerS bave their 
requirements and expectations met for bJgb qnality products or results with almost no exceptions. 

. , . . 
Established schedules and deadlines for development of programs and policies were met and 
adaptations to changing priorities were made. 

ALIGNMENT: 

USDA Strategic Plan Goal 6 - Protect and Enhance the Nation's Natllral Resource Base and 
Environment 
Objective 6.1 - Protect Watershed Health to Ensure Clean and Abundant Water 
Objective 6.3 - Protect Forests and Omsslands 

IiIJ 008 
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Objective 6.4 - Protect and Enhance Wildlife Habitat to Benefit Desired, At-Risk and Declining 
Species 

Forest Service Business Operations Strategic Plan Goal I: Streamline Systems and Processes 
Forest Service Business Operations StrategicPlan Goal 2: Enhruice workforce roanag.ment 
Enhance the workforce io reflect diversity, appropriate skill mix, and a high rate of retention, all 
of which helps the agency become an employer of choice 
Forest Service Business Operations Strategic Plan Goal 3 - Improve Customer Serv:ice 

,- --Objective -fi':..-p;.;;';;;de-iiiDely, afford~lile;-acciiiiite; ~ijd easy access to m",,!,gemenJ informatiOlL 
Objective 1.3 - Identii'y and implement opportunities for streamlining b!lSine~s pmces~ and 
systems. 

[ilJ009 

Perl-onnance Measures! Action Strategies: .. .1\ (1 L·w s.t,. If-
• WiththeDepartmen~ implement LSGP by end of Fiscal Year 'DB. tV" .. ~ L~ , u.dlJ~cn 
• Implement Phase II of LSD' by June FYOB (includes department implementation). <5fu.'.~o ev<>i-. 
• Implement GOVT Trip by September 30, 200B, (replaces Fed Traveier) ... , _ '-I--
• Impl'E'~t SMARTPA Y2 ... ~y;§ept7"lber 30, 200B. ,(replaces PCJ5f~, IIf!Xe1 l"1Td, BOA) 0;;-~r 

V:-' .. ~~" "I ,>D I ~ JO't; r-""· tbA-~ w~ os. ,-
Forest Service Business Operations Strategic Plan Goal 2: -
Objective 2.1 - Make decisions about woMorce management (i.e., recruitment, retention, and 
diversity)ihat reflect the strategies·rifthe Workforce Management Pla,{:· . ., .... ' 

Performance MeasUres! Action Strategies: 
~ Annual external hiring and St)Jdent Career Experience Program conversions reflect 

Workforce Plan goals 80 ~ceni ofibe time. IF· .. .. 
.. ·'Forest Serv:ice Busines~ Operations Strategic Plan Goal 3 - Improve CustofDcr service· 

Objective 3.3 - Support Forest Service Programs needs as requested by cUstO!DeIs. . 

Perfor'rnance Measures/Action Slmteg;;,s: 
• CUstomer r"'loesis in acqulsition management meet service-standard baselines for 

requested support. ~ . 
• Customer r"'luests in ASC-B&F meet serv:ice - standard b"selines for requested support. 

Rating: .. 
d Exceeds Fully Successful 
D Meets Fully Successful 
D Does Not Meet Fully Successful 
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ELEMENT 3. Civil Rigbts (Critica/) 

provides leaderShip to develop and implement strategic plans for civil rights. Enforce alI-civil 
rights laws, rules, regulations, and executive orderS. Ensur~ that sufficient resources are available 
to provide for an effective civil rights program. Hold all managers and supervisors pccountable 
for achieving measurable civil rights goals lUld objecoves in all employment, program delivery, 
and procurement activities. 

lill Successful Performance R uirement - Element 3: 

{DCOlporates the Civil Rights Performance Plan into the agency or staff office strategic and annual 
performance plans developed in compliance with the Government Performance and Results Act. 

Implements and enforces all applicable policies, regulations, rules, memoranda, and other USDA 
guidance. . 

AUGNMENT: 

Forest Service Business Operntions Strategic Plan Goal 2: Enhance workforce management 
wHIlce the workforce to reflect diversity, appropriate skill mix, and a higjl rate of.r.~eotion, all 
of which helps the agency become an employer of choice. .., ' ...... . 
Forest Service Business Operations Straiegic Plan Goal 5: Promote Civil Rights 

Objective 2.1 - Make dedsions about workforce management (i.e., recruitmen~' rCte~tion. and . 
diversity) that reflect the strn.tegies of the Workforce Management Plan 

Performance Measures/Action Strategies: 
• Annual external hiring and Student Career Experience Program conversions reflect 

Workforce Plan goals 80 percent of the time. 

Forest Service Business Operations Strategic Plan GoalS: 
Objectlve 5.2- Ensure an envirorunent where employees, cooperators and the public can learn 
about and exercise t11eir civil rights, and where programs and services are d<ilivered to comply 
with Civil Rights Law. . 

Performance Measures/Action Strategies: 
• Conduct periodic employee. surveys, educations and i)lformation, and awareness efforts to 

foster pro-active prevention following EEOC MD715, EEOC 2!1 CFR 1614.aiJd CTA CR 
Bus~ess PIBl!.. ~.. .. . 

• IdentifY and elllIlmate poliCIes, procedures, and prachces that are obstacles to achieving 
diversity. L;:)..20/ . 

• IdentifY barriers to a positive work environment through analysis of complaints, exit 
interviews, employee suiveys, and program reviews. t$~ . 

• Referto 6140-3 WO Letter, for performance measures and allocated targets identified in 
the Forest Service Program Director. 

Rating: 
[J Exceeds Fully Successful 
o Meets Fully Successful 

IilJ 010 

o Does Not Meet Fully Successful 
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ELEMENT 4: PersonaVOrganizational Emphases (Non-Critical) 

Effectively accomplishes components of the agency's effortS to improve and maintainfinancial 
accountability and integrity as demonstrated through an unqualified audit opinion (clean opinion). 
Provides leadership to ensure the Forest Service bas model business systems that provide 
integrity, accuracy, and time1ines of business transactions, accounting functions, and int~gration 
of related systems. 

Forest Service receives a clean audit opinion on its FY 2008 financial statements. 

Reports to internal and external business partnetli, e.g., OMB aljd the Departn\ent pfthe Treasury, 
are timely and aCCUIllte. ' 

Contiuuous monitoring of the Albuquerque Service Centerl.Budget and Finance functionS per the 
business plan and service level agreements is performed. 

Begin the implementation pbase II of the LsTP and monitor agency and departn\ent issues. 

Meets requirem";'ts and reporting dates associated willi internal controls as indica~ iIi"OMB 
Circular A-123, Management's Responsibility for Internal Control. 

Develop "':'d initiate implementation of a new AQM organization in concert willi the ' 
transformation effort. 

Resolve immediate Rosslyn space and-long-term Headqnarter space needs. ' 

ALIGNMENT;, 
USDA Strategic Plan Goal 6 - Protect and Enhance the Nation's Natural Resource Base and 

, Environment, " 
Objective 6.1 -Protect Watershed Health to Ensure Clean and Abundant Water 
Objective 6.3 - Protect Forests and Grasslands , 
Objective 6.4 - Protect and Enhance Wildlife Habitat to Benefit Desired, At-Riskaild Declining 
Species 

Business Operations Strategic Plan Goal 6, Objective 6.1 - Sustain financial management, 
improvements and maintain an unquaIified audit opinion (clean audit) through excellence in' 
resource and capital asset management 

Performance Measures/Action Strategies: 
';' E!iminate the remaining material weakness (IT) and no new weaknesses""; identified in 

FYOS are identified in the financial statomentaudit. ~ 
0, Reduce the number of accounts receivable over 180 days old. 
• Reduce the numberof SUSF rejects over 30 days old. 
• Reduce the number of open obligations over 365 days old. 
• Amount of interest penalty cbarges paid reduced from previous year's baseline. 
• All SLA's identified by llie Customer Service Board and President's Management 

@Oll 

Agenda improve to achieve '"green" score. 
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AUGlI<'MENT; 
Business Operations Strategic Plan Goal 6, Objective 6.2 -,Provide accurate reports to internal 
and external business partners, e.g. OMB and the Department of the Treasury, 

Performance Measures/Action Strategies: 
• Submit quarterly FACTS n accurately and timely without any abnonnal conditions. 
• Submit annual-FACTS-I and the Treasury Repcrt of Receivables (TROR) accunrtely and 

timely. - - -
-- -- -- - -~=~.=-Eii~ alHiibsiiliarysysteni.-are-reconciletfwith the FFIS accounting systems monthly 

fu~ .-

o Etceeds Fully Successful 
o Meets Fully SucceSsfnl 
o Does Not Meet Fully Successful 

9 
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ELEMENT 5: Safetyill.altb and Homeland Security (Critical) 

IncO/porate safety, health, and homeland security considerations into work projects, activities, 
and program policies, resulting in aworkplace that is free from recognized hazands. 

/Fully Successf.d Performance Requirement - EJem.~t 5:' 

Identified safety action pJan items are accomplished at the ASC-B&F. 
Ensure that saf.tydata are entered into the safety and health reporting system in a timely and 
accurate mannCT. 

ALIGNMENT: 

Forest Service Business Operations Strategic Plan Goal 4: IncO/porate Safety, Health, and 
Homeland Security 
Objective 4.1 -ldenJify and correct deficiencies in safety programming. 

PeTi~':mari~e'Me:asuresiAction Strategies: 

• 100% of anpual bealth and safety action plan items are accO!llplish~."· ; .. 

Objective 4.2 -Improve reporting and tracking of accidents and incidents. 

Pei-formance Measures/Action Strategies: 

IIlJ 013 
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FY 2008 Performance Contract 

Jesse L King, Chlef Financial Officer 
October 1,2007 - September 30, 2008 

1. Sustain the Unqualified (Clean) Financial Statement Audit Opinion 

lilJ014 

'Goal: Improve and maintain financial accountability and integrity as demonstrated through an 
unqualified audit opinion. ' 

a. Fully successful- Forest Service receives a clean audit opinion on its FY2008financial 
statements 

h. Supe~ior - Forest Service receives a clean audit opinion on its FY2008 financial statements and 
" --"'~=receive.s-no-ilew 'mateI:iiil 'WeakDesses(iYrepoitable coilditions 

c. OutStanding·- Forest Service receives a clean audifopinion on its FY2008 financialstaieinents 
and makes S11bstantial progress in resolving material weaknesses, reportable conditions and' 
compliance issues with laws and regulations. ' 

2. Continuous Improvement of Financial Management 

Goal: 'Continuous monitoring of Financial functions at the Albuquerque Service Center (ASe). 
a. Flllly successful - Service Level Agreements achieve 80% of desired levels. 

" b., Superior - ,Servic~ Le~~) Agreements are exceeded by met., ' 
c. Otitst'.ndiIig~ 'Sehli:e 'Level ailreements are exceeded bi 2% and remaining finance functions 
~ identified to move to the,ASC as a r~t of the tr;m;sfory'ati0I1 ef("r!S,. ,;. ;", , ,;' 

3. EJimiiJate Bllsiness Operations Open Olltstanding Audit Find,ings aveJ; One Year 
.' " '" .... ' '. 

Goal: Reduce and/or eliminate the remaining open Business Oper.~ons t\udjt Fiudings qve .... One 
Year Old . , . ' , , 

a. Fully successful - Close 50% of the Open Audit Findmgs Over 0iJ'l Y<;ar Old 
b. Superior -- Close 60% of the Open Audit Findings Over' One Year Old 
c. Outstanding - Close 70% of the Open Audit Findings Ovei One Year Old 

4. Develop and iInplement new i\QM organization. 

Goal': Achieve meaningful improvements in the effectiveness and efficiency of AQM .s it relates to 
progr~m!l~Y~,_ ' ,,' ',' . , , 

a. FullY Successful - New organization is designed for implementation in concert With the 
transfonnation effort. , ' " ,,' ' . 

b. Superior- New organization is designed for implementation and initial stage is completed by 
September 30, 2008. 

c. Olltst~niling - Stiperior measure and in addition facility issues for headquarter is decided and 
initiated. . ' 
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• 
TIMELINE OF EVENTS ON JESSE KING 

fn May 2008, the USDA Departmental Administration (DA), Office of Human Capital 
Management (OHCM) received a complaint alleging misconduct and mismanagement on the 
part of King. It is alleged King repeatedly used his Goverrunent issued travel card for personal 
use, failed to obtain authorization to deviate from his official travel, use Government contract 
airline fares for personal travel that resulted in additional expenses for the Government and failed 
to repay the balance on his Government issued travel card. OHCM imitated an investigation into 
these allegations (FS-SES-2008-01). 

The results of the investigation substantiated the allegations. On September 26, 2008, KING was 
interviewed and acknowledged that he is not authorized to use the goverrunent travel charge card 
for personal use, but admitted to utilizing the card to charge food, meals and rental cars at his. 
duty station (Albuquerque, NM) and charging transportation (car service and rental cars) at or 
near his personal residence in Houston, Texas. King admitted that all of the charges were when 
he was not on official travel. The following is a timeline of the events related to this matter: 

April 2008 - Two Forest Service (FS) employees reported to Melvin Shibuya, Chief, FS 
Employee Relations, Albuquerque, NM, that Jesse King, Chief Financial Officer, FS, was past 
due on his government issued travel card and is using the· travel card and made personal charges 
on the card. 

April 2008 - Shibuya began to pursue the matter through his supervisor and up the chain of 
corrun'lnd. The issue comes to the attention of Donna Carmical, Director, Albuquerque Service 
Center, FS. 

April 2008 - Carmical reports the matter to her supervisor, Hank Kashdan, Deputy Chief for 
Business Operations, FS. Kashdan advises that he will have "someone else" investigate the 
matter. Carmical calls Roy Roosevelt at the Albuquerque Service Center and directs him to tell 
Melvin Shibuya "to tum the matter over to the Department" and "put a lid on it" 

May 6, 2008 to September 26, 2008 - Debra Gilmore, Senior Employee Relations Specialist, 
Departmental Human Resources Division, LaborlEmployee Relations and Litigation Branch, 
Office of Human Capital Management (OHCM), Departmental Administration, was assigned· to 
investigate the misconduct allegations by King. Ms. Gilmore obtained both documentary 
evidence and sworn testimony substantiating the allegations. 

September 30, 2008 - Performance rating period ends for Senior Executives. 

November 4, 2008 - Lynn Alexander, Attorney, Disclosure Unit, Office of Special Counsel 
(aS C) contacted Jill Crumpacker, former Director, OHCM, USDA and requested a copy of the 
Report ofInvestigation (ROI) on King. 
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• 
November 4, 2008 - Performance Review Board (PRB) convened to review SES ratings and 
bonus reconunendations for FS executives. King is recommended to receive a "Superior" rating, 
a 3% salary increase, and a $13,000 cash award by the PRB. The PRB members include: Mark 
Rey, Under Secretary for Natural Resources and Environment; Dr. Gerald Bange from the Office 
of the Chief Economist; Carolyn Cooksie from the Farm Services Agency; Hubert Hamer from 
the National Agricultural Statistics Service; and James Schaub from the Office of the Chief 
Economist. 

November 6,2008 - Crumpacker sent Alexander an e-mail advising her that OHCM staff 
drafted a proposed removal letter and the delegation of authority to take adverse action against 
the SES (KlNG) was forwarded to the Chief of the FS. Note: The authority to take actions 
against an SES official is the responsibility of the Director of OHCM. The Director generally 
delegates that authority to the head of the agency but can be delegated to the respective agency. 

November 24,2008 - Roberta Purcell, former Director, OHCM, sent an e-mail to Abigail 
Kimbell, former Chief of the FS and attached a copy of the Letter of Delegation and a draft of 
the Notice of Proposed Removal for King 

December 15, 2008 - Notice of Proposed Removal is prepared and signed by Abigail Kimbell. 

December 15, 2008 (approximate) - King is issued a performance award of$13,OOO. 

January 7, 2009 - King receives Notice of Proposed Removal, requests 20 additional days to 
respond to notice. Request is approved by Abigail Kimbell, in writing the same day. 

January 9, 2009 - Kimbell sends an e-mail to King advising his request for a 20 day extension 
was approved and the approval letter was attached to the e-mail. 

January 28,2009 - King submits written reply; reply indicates his desire to retire. He submits 
an optional retirement application with an effective date of March 31, 2009. 

January 29, 2un9 - Departmental Human Resources Division (DHRD), OHCM ;";'s assigned to 
process the King optional retirement. OHCM requests OPF and necessary documents to prepare 
the application before it is forwarded to Office of Personnel Management (OPM). 

Jan'~ary 30, 2009 - Kimbell spoke with Violette telephonically and informed her that KING 
advised he was prepared to retire. Kimbell advised she would accept the retirement application 
and make it effective March 31,2009. Violette asked why it would take until March 31. 
Kimbell advised it would take that long for FS to process the paperwork. Violette strongly 
encouraged Kimbell to let her office process the retirement paperwork for King. 

January 30, 2009 - DHCM received the completed retirement application. 

February 2,2009 - Violette forwarded "Decision Letter" on King to Crumpacker. 
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• 
February 4-6, 2009 - Director, DHRD, follows up with Forest Service Benefits Officer, Sue 
Lawrence, regarding the retirement date of March 31,2009, for King. As it was an "immediate 
retirement," DHRD was questioning the date of the retirement. DHRD learned that King was on 
leave through Friday, February 6, but would be returning to work on Monday, February 9. 
DHRD assumed King was on administrative leave during the notice period of the adverse action. 

February 6, 2009 - Violette sent e-mail to Bonnie Stewart, DHRD staff advising the retirement 
date for King should be February 3, 2009. 

February 9, 2009 - DHRD Director contacted Mr. King regarding his retirement date of March 
31,2009. Mr. King stated that was the date he had chosen. DHRD Director reminded him that 

.. __ tl1~.adV~(S~,,-ctiQn wautiltpending.a.decision,.and.asJong as he was on.the rolls, a decision 
would be forthcoming. He asked the DHRD Director what date he should retire. The DHRD 
Director told him that the decision was his, it was completely voluntary on his part, and he could 
make whatever choice he wanted. He just needed to be informed of the situation. King said he 
would retire effective February 3, 2009 and fax DHRD Director his revised application 
immediately. 

February 9, 2009 - DHRD prepared a notice of decision effecting the removal of Mr. King on 
Friday, February 13; holding in abeyance the decision, only if he was retired prior to the 
effective date of the removal. 

February 9, 2009 - Kimbell contacted Crumpacker via e-mail and requested that Violette 
contact her (Kimbell) directly if she had questions and not call the FS HR staff directly. 

February 9, 2009 - Crumpacker e-mailed Kimball and advised that she would receive the letter 
today and the effective date of the retirement is not negotiable and should be immediate. 
Crumpacker also advised Kimbell that King should be placed on administrative leave status 
during the period of the adverse action. 

February 9, 2009 - Violette advised via e-mail that the retirement package was complete but 
King wants to make a deposit for his military service prior to retirement. This makes that 
retirement more complicated to process and the package cannot be completed today. 

February 11,2009 - Gail Kimbell, Deciding Official, declined to issue the decision, citing the 
reason that King had already retired. 

February 11, 2009 - Violette sent an e-mail to Kimbell to determine if the decision letter was 
mailed Federal Express or faxed to King that day. Violette advised that King must receive the 
letter before or by the effective date which was Friday, February 13,2009. 

February 12, 2009 ~ Kimbell sends e-mail to Violette, Crumpacker and Hank Kashdan advising 
she does not intend to issue the letter since Mr. King has retired. Kimbell states that she would 
be happy to discuss it further in person but will want to have J. Michael Kelly, Acting General 
Counsel, Office of General Counsel, USDA attend the meeting. 
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• 
February 12,2009 - Violette advises that Kimbell's statement that King has retired is incorrect. 
Until King's retirement is approved he has not retired and he has stated only his intent to retire. 
The statement of intent could change at any time until the date of the approval of the retirement. 

February 12, 2009 - DHRD Benefits Officer continued to work with the Forest Service to 
obtain necessary documentation to complete King's retirement package. DHRD still awaits SF-
2809's, "Health Benefits Forms," and SF-2817's, "Life Insurance Election Forms," in King's 
OPF, which they claim they do not have. 
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